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ABOUT Champion Technology
(STOCK CODE: 0092)

Champion Technology Holdings Limited
(“Champion Technology” or the “Company”)
(www.championtechnology.com) together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) is a global technology
group offering innovative solutions in the areas of
communications software, wireless, telematics,
e-commerce, security, online entertainment and
e-gaming. The Group’s solutions are dedicated to
bettering the lives of people, enriching lifestyles,
promoting health consciousness, preventing
accidents, saving lives, as well as promoting probity
and responsibility in the conduct of the online
industry. Such solutions include software-enhanced
wireless messaging, radio products and systems,
spark proof intrinsically safe communications
systems, responsible gaming solutions, as well

as networking and Internet access products for
customers, network operators, and commercial,
government and industrial clients.

With total assets of over $8 billion, the Group has a
global presence in more than 50 markets through
a network of regional offices and distributors. It
includes 3 Hong Kong listed companies, namely
Champion Technology Holdings Limited and
Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”), whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”),
and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”),
whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Exchange. The Group also includes a
UK subsidiary previously listed on the London Stock
Exchange.
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Financial Highlights M #i& %

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“EENF ZTTN\F ZTTLFE ZTTRF ZTTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT FHT FHT FHT
Results E
(for the year ended 30 June) (BERA=THLEE)
- Turnover —EEE 2,923,103 3,635,049 3,164,287 2,996,668 2,461,710
- Adjusted profit* — ()~ 402,068 992,741 937,109 762,385 609,496
- Adjusted EBITDA* —RETAFIE - BiE - E
N BRI (LAE)x 1,300,914 1729455 1,441,456 1,156,687 821,224
—EBITDA —RETAFIE - BB - E
3 sl 1,002,064 991,929 1,327,245 1,098,563 784,795
- Attributable profit — FEAR &R 74,630 190,456 626,818 549,994 458,726
- Dividends -8 19,968 48,112 96,686 73,096 59,867
— Earnings per share (in HK cents) —FRER (L) 2.31 7.12 27.51 27.12 23.88
Financial Position (as at 30 June)  BI%#R(AXA=1H)
- Cash and cash equivalents -RERREERE 322,706 350,728 347,482 921,264 737,795
- Total assets —BEBE 8,871,166 8,446,159 7,657,367 6,453,200 5,561,082
- Equity — 6,973,345 6,685,006 6,137,672 5258,760 4,704,867
Financial Ratios (as at 30 June) B R(R<A=1+A)
- Current assets/Current liabilities —RBEE/FBEE 3.36 313 4.32 6.88 5.38
— Assets/Equity —AE/ s 1.27 1.6 1.25 1.23 118
- Sales/Assets —E¥EAE 0.33 0.43 0.41 0.46 0.44
- Gearing ratio —ERERLE 0.06 0.04 0.04 0.03 0.04
*  Excluding impairment, fair value change of convertible bonds and other * RFETARE - ATMRESF N TFEEEZD R EMIFRSE
non-cash items B
SEVENTEEN YEARS OF SUSTAINED PROFITABILITY EETLFRERF
(in HK$ million) (B8#T)
Adjusted EBITDA
REFAFE - BiE - TERBHEZ B (EAE)
[ EBITDA 1,729
RETARE - BIH - FTEREE B
Profit
gl
1,441
1,301
1,157
880 g3 ear
584
510 504
431
318 - .
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iGNNI NES
1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Page 02



Paul KAN Man Lok (Chairman)
Leo KAN Kin Leung (CEQO)
LAl Yat Kwong

Shirley HA Suk Ling

Terry John MILLER
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT
Frank BLEACKLEY

LEE Chi Wah*

Prof. YE Pei Da*

Prof. LIANG Xiong Jian#

Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha

Francis Gilbert KNIGHT (Committee Chairman)
Terry John MILLER

Frank BLEACKLEY

Shirley HA Suk Ling

LEE Chi Wah*

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Asia

17°, Andar J

Macau Finance Centre
Nos.244-246, Rua De Pequim
Macau

Europe

Multitone House
Shortwood Copse Lane
Kempshott, Basingstoke
Hampshire, RG23 7NL
UK

3rd Floor
Kantone Centre

1 Ning Foo Street
Chai Wan

Hong Kong

*  appointed as a director and a member of audit committee on

1 July 2009
resigned as a director on 30 June 2009
+  retired as a director on 27 November 2008

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2009

Bank of China

Bank of East Asia, Macau

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ
Citibank, N.A.

DBS Bank, Macau

HSBC, Macau

Standard Chartered Bank, Macau

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35th Floor One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

65 Front Street
Hamilton
Bermuda

Tricor Secretaries Limited
26th Floor Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

http://www.championtechnology.com

0092

Investor Relations

Champion Technology Holdings Limited
Kantone Centre

1 Ning Foo Street

Chai Wan

Hong Kong

e-mail: ir@championtechnology.com



CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2009

Dear Shareholders,

The year under review was marked by the most challenging
global economic environment in decades. Amid the
continuing credit crisis, sharp contraction of business
activities and the record levels of job losses, most
economies entered into a period of recession.

Viewed against this background, the Group achieved
solid results for the year ended 30 June 2009, and has
maintained its record of sustained profitability for 17 years.

For the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group’s financial
performance is summarised below:

e Turnover was HK$2,923 million

e Profit for the year was HK$103 million

e Profit attributable to equity holders was HK$74.6 million

* Adjusted profit (excluding impairment and other non-
cash items) was HK$402 million

e Adjusted EBITDA (excluding impairment and other non-
cash items) was HK$1,301 million

¢ Adjusted earnings per share (excluding impairment
and other non-cash items) was HK8.57 cents; reported
earnings per share was HK2.31 cents

The Group's business in both investments and in the
development and design of customised wireless systems
and communications software solutions was affected
across the board by the global economic slowdown.

The positive performance has been achieved through a
combination of pricing policies in an effort to maintain the
flow of business and other concessionary terms to both
customers and suppliers in a difficult credit and operating
environment.

The directors have recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK0.25 cents per share for the year ended 30
June 2009. Together with the interim dividend of HK0.50
cents per share, the total dividend per share for the year
would be HKO0.75 cents, and total dividend for the year
would be HK$20 million.

The Group maintains a positive financial position as
evidenced by its low gearing. As a precaution against
further financial turbulence, and to strengthen our liquidity
position ahead of continuing market uncertainties, the
Company announced in April this year a one-for-one rights
issue, which was successfully completed in June, raising
net capital of approximately HK$142 million after expenses.

Consistent with a prudent financial management policy, the
Group has not entered into any speculative derivatives or
structured product transactions.

We are proud of our people and the way that Champion
Technology commits to acting as a good corporate citizen.
Underlying the Group’s business pursuits is a strong
sense to work for good causes, for more loving care, for
peace and harmony, probity, philanthropy, community and
ultimately for a better tomorrow. Our business solutions
revolve around the themes of safety, systems integrity and
reliability.

Throughout the year, we have continued to embark on such
social reinvestment efforts as cultural events, academic
and youth programmes, promotion of IT adoption and
responsible citizenship. As 2009 marks the 60th anniversary
of the founding of the People’s Republic of China, the
Group has continued with its endeavours to introduce

the highly successful “Peace and Harmony” exhibition
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series, which has won international recognition since it was
first launched in 2007. The purpose of the exhibitions is

to promote a sense of “peace and harmony” in the world
where we are living, a central concept in Chinese culture.

We are particularly inspired by the Statement titled “Unite as
One and Work for a Bright Future” made by President
Hu Jintao at the UN General Assembly in New York last
month, where he made these closing remarks, “We are
called upon by our times to unite as one and work
together for mutual benefit and win-win progress like
passengers in the same boat. This is the only way
leading to common prosperity. Let’s join hands, share
development opportunities, rise above challenges and
make unremitting effort to build a harmonious world
of enduring peace and common prosperity!”

In the face of unprecedented challenges and opportunities,
as remarked by President Hu in the Statement, “we,
members of the international community, should commit
ourselves to peace, development, cooperation, common
progress and tolerance and continue our joint endeavour
to build a harmonious world of enduring peace and
common prosperity and contribute to the noble cause

and development of mankind.” In our own small way, we
hope our “Peace and Harmony” exhibition series can
help to spread the message of continued strengthening

of international co-operation beyond all differences and
borders for the common good and progress. The third
episode of the series, “Peace and Harmony — the Divine
Spectra of Manjusri enshrining the Wisdom of China with 108
pieces of Manjusri and related artifacts” exhibition started in
October 2009.

Another area of passion for Champion Technology is the
importance of environmental sustainability. The Group is
committed to developing its “green” vision and strategy,
working closely with our suppliers to implement “green”
initiatives. The Group is a signatory to the Hong Kong SAR
Government’s “Carbon Audit — Green Partners” Scheme
which aims at engaging corporates and NGOs (non-profit
organisations) to reduce greenhouse gas emission in Hong
Kong.

T sl FEI I
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Globally the economic conditions have shown signs

of stabilisation, thanks to strong actions by various
governments, such as massive public financing and
aggressive monetary easing. In particular, the Mainland
market, which accounts for a significant portion of our
business, has maintained a reasonable level of growth due
to strong macro-economic stimulus measures implemented
by the Central Government since the beginning of 2009.
China appears well placed to recover at a faster pace than
many other countries and its long-term economic prospects
remain positive.

Nevertheless, the directors remain alert to further difficulties
and challenges that may arise, despite some early signs of
easing of the global economic downturn. We should heed
the latest remarks from the Central Government that “the
recovery would be slow and tortuous” amid a continuing
slump in exports, and that “the foundation of the economic
rebound was not yet firm, while uncertainties remained
globally and domestically.” The Group will remain vigilant
and continue to adopt a conservative approach. Cost
control measures will continue to be focused upon.

The Group’s projects and investments in both technologies
and privately held companies may be subject to
impairment, especially those in the start-up or development
stages. We will continue to exercise prudence in managing
project and investment risks and take a critical review

of the Group’s portfolio, making provisions and write-
downs where deemed appropriate in compliance with

the requirements of the latest international accounting
standards. The continuing uncertainties in the global market
require management to exercise ongoing caution with our
financial and accounting policies.

In line with market trends, the Group’s strategy going
forward will be focused on value-add and high growth
sectors to achieve an overall margin improvement. In terms
of business focus, customised communications solutions
and integrated security services for applications in multiple

wads | wEa 0
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markets and sectors will be our direction for growth and
expansion. That will include a comprehensive portfolio

that embraces different technologies and wide-ranging
applications, covering biometric identification, smartcard
solutions, logistics and RFID (radio frequency identification)
technology, fraud detection systems, and mobile-

based applications using video and audio compression
technologies in telematics control, public safety, and
personal security. Meanwhile, as information technology is
widely adopted today across industries and businesses, as
well as in our daily lives, new and emerging opportunities,
especially in fast growing markets such as China, may
arise where we can leverage our IT expertise to engage
selectively in new projects with attractive returns and good
prospects. In particular, the Group may pursue investments
and related opportunities in the arena of information
medicine and green technology where global demand
continues to surge.

The Group is delighted with the latest award to Brazil to host
the 2016 Olympics. As part of the Group’s global strategy
and positioning to expand into emerging markets, we
established operations in Brazil back in 1999 under Kantone
New Ventures, a unit within Kantone, which is managed

by Luiz Octavio Villa-Lobos, a native Brazilian with an MBA
from the London Business School. He is now Managing
Director of Kantone’s Brazilian operations, as well as Vice
President of Interactive Knowledge Delivery for international
clients at the Group level. The offices in Sdo Paulo and Rio
de Janeiro provide wireless communications that catered to
the special needs of a wide range of customers, covering
hospitals, supermarket chains, government departments,
manufacturing plants and international hotel chains.

With 190 million people and ranking the world’s tenth
largest economy, Brazil will serve as a blueprint for the
Group’s expansion into other Latin American countries.
Ahead of the Olympics in seven years' time, significant
spending will be allocated to infrastructure, security and
transportation. Our establishment in Brazil hopefully will
enable us to seize new business opportunities, in particular
in providing telecommunications and IT solutions.

Over the past two decades of our establishment, we have
weathered tough macro environments and reinvented
ourselves time and again by staying focused on innovation,
investing for the future, building on our solid foundations,
and managing business risks on a long-term basis. With

a positive financial position and niche technologies, we
hope that the Group will take in stride the ongoing global
economic uncertainties, and to pursue new investments
with a promising future as and when opportunities present
themselves.

Professor Liang Xiong Jian, an independent non-executive
director, retired at our last Annual General Meeting on 27
November 2008. Professor Ye Pei Da, also an independent
non-executive director, resigned with effect from 30 June
2009 due to his senior age. | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to both Professor Liang and Professor

Ye for their invaluable contributions to the Group’s
development. Both professors continue to be Honorary
Advisors to the Group’s research institute.

Mr. Lee Chi Wah, currently the Chief Technical Advisor

of a consultancy firm, and previously a Vice President of
Technology for Champion Technology from 1988 to 1994,
has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director. The Board believes that Mr. Lee’s extensive
knowledge and experience will be beneficial to the Group.

Last but not least, we take enormous pride in the latest
Nobel prize in Physics being awarded to Professor Charles
Kao, who served as the Group’s Technical Advisor at

the time of our flotation on the Stock Exchange in 1992,
providing valuable advice on the latest development in
telecommunications and information technology. As the
“father of fibre optics”, a breakthrough technology which
underpins the information superhighway and makes the
Internet possible, Professor Kao’s vision of Hong Kong
being a knowledge-based economy and his steadfast
efforts in promoting education reforms have made him “a
truly home-grown scientific giant”. Throughout the years,
Professor Kao has remained close to the Group. The
Nobel prize is indeed a great honour to all of the Chinese
community and IT professionals, and hopefully this will usher
in more and greater breakthroughs in the years to come.

Our accomplishments and solid performance over the
past years are built upon established relationships with

all of our stakeholders. | take this opportunity to thank our
shareholders, employees worldwide, customers, partners,
bankers, professional consultants, honorary advisors and
our fellow directors for their trust, confidence and support.
As we forge ahead in this extremely competitive and
challenging global environment, such support and trust are
invaluable to our long-term development.

Paul KAN Man Lok
Chairman

20 October 2009



For the year under review (the “Year”), the Group recorded
a 20 percent decline in turnover to HK$2,923 million, as
compared with HK$3,635 million of the previous year (the
“Previous Year"). Profit for the Year was HK$103 million,

a decrease of 60 percent, and profit attributable to equity
holders was HK$74.6 million compared with HK$190.5
million for the Previous Year. Earnings per share for the Year
was HK2.31 cents as compared with HK7.12 cents of the
Previous Year after adjustment for the rights issue during
the Year. Profit was affected by the decrease in turnover
and lower profit margins amid the economic slowdown.
Gross margin fell from 35 percent to 22 percent as a

result of price reduction aiming at maintaining customer
relationship in a difficult operating environment. Impairment
losses of approximately HK$309 million made on
development costs for systems and networks, available-for-
sale investments, and deposits and prepaid development
costs also impacted adversely on profit. Such provisions
reflected prevailing market conditions and a prudent and
conservative assessment of the investments and assets
concerned. The profit decline was partially offset by a net
gain of approximately HK$10.5 million in relation to the
discount on acquisition and loss on deemed disposal of

a subsidiary. Excluding these non-cash items, adjusted
profit for the Year was HK$402 million, and adjusted profit
attributable to equity holders was HK$277 million.

For investment projects, the Group had adopted a
conservative approach to delay implementation in light of
the economic uncertainties.

Strict discipline in cost management continued to be
maintained, resulting in reduced operating expenses.
Distribution costs were reduced by 11 percent to HK$47.6
million (2008: HK$53.6 million) while general and
administrative expenses were reduced by 29 percent to
HK$187.3 million (2008: HK$262.1 million). In light of the
continued roll-out of new systems and networks during the
Year, depreciation and amortisation expenses went up by
22 percent to HK$888.8 million (2008: HK$727.9 million).

Finance costs for the Year increased to HK$8.9 million from
HK$6.8 million for the Previous Year, mainly attributable to
interest payable on the convertible redeemable bond that
remained outstanding during the Year.

The Group’s financial position remains positive with
low gearing, and it does not engage in any speculative
derivatives or structured product transactions.
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Critical Financial and Accounting Policies

The continuing uncertainties in the global market require
management to exercise ongoing caution with our financial
and accounting policies. In particular, the preparation of
our financial statements and certain accounting policies
require that management applies significant judgment in
defining the appropriate assumptions integral to financial
estimates. On an ongoing basis, management will evaluate
those estimates, including those relating to the estimated
lives of depreciable assets, asset impairment, allowances
for doubtful accounts, contingencies and other items.
Judgments are based on historical experience, term of
existing contracts, industry trends and information available
from outside sources, as appropriate. However, by their
nature, judgments are subject to an inherent degree of
uncertainty, and therefore actual results could differ from
our estimates. Details of the policies are provided in the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The second half of the Year saw a rapid deterioration of
business climate globally as the full impact of the financial
crisis began to be felt, resulting in a rapid downturn of the
global economy.

During the Year, China’s economy was affected by a
weakening export market and the closedown of factories
resulting in large numbers of laid-off workers. The Group’s
key areas continued to be innovative communications
and security solutions and services customised to achieve
high reliability and high integrity. Our top-of-the-line
products embrace a comprehensive range of integrated
wireless solutions that interface with a broad range of
radio networks; web-based monitoring solutions designed
for remote management and security applications; and
command, control and communications applications for
use in mission critical assignments involving public safety,
personal security and telematics control.
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The Group’s Homeland Security Division has been
working with international partners to offer comprehensive
customised solutions for integrated security systems
ranging from access control, video monitoring, alarm
processing, internal and external intruder detection,
perimeter systems, communications network monitoring,
to command control and communications. The Group’s
products had been exhibited at a number of trade shows
and exhibitions in China, and our booths were well-
attended and drew a lot of interest. In May this year, the
Group participated in the 3rd China (Beijing) International
Exhibition & Symposium on Police Equipment & Anti-
Terrorism Technology & Equipment(Z =fE+ & (4t 1)
Bl ERRERRREMEERES), having been a
participant in similar exhibitions in prior years.

For the Year, China sales accounted for HK$2,251 million
of the Group’s turnover, a drop of 19 percent as compared
with HK$2,783 million of the Previous Year, mainly as a
result of the global slowdown.

In Europe, the Group’s sales and marketing activities
concentrated on emergency services, fire control projects,
as well as the NHS (National Health Services) projects in
the United Kingdom (“UK"). Several new contracts for the
supply of alarm monitoring solutions to hospitals in the UK,
and contracts in Eastern Europe for the supply of Lone
Worker and Personal Security solutions were secured.
Business in the fire services sector picked up, with the
resumption of some projects after initial delays, and the
German market has also begun to show signs of recovery.
Turnover of the European operations registered a drop of
20 percent to HK$475 million, as compared with HK$597
million of the Previous Year. The decrease was partly
attributable to the softening of the Euro and the Pound
Sterling.

The Group's strategic investment in In-Car Telematics
solutions, anti-radiation products to counteract radio
emission from mobile phones, ID card project with

related IT security opportunities, as well as smart logistics
solutions, progressed as planned. These investments are
subject to review periodically to determine if progress is

in line with the original plan and if the anticipated benefits
can be achieved. Where required, impairment provisions at
appropriate level will be made.

Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”)

Kantone recorded a 19 percent drop in turnover to
HK$1,300 million, compared with HK$1,613 million in the
Previous Year. Profit for the Year was HK$68.3 million, as
compared with HK$137.0 million of the Previous Year, a
decrease of 50 percent. Excluding impairment losses in
relation to development costs of systems and networks,
investments, and deposits and prepaid development costs
totalling approximately HK$197.0 million, adjusted profit
was HK$265.3 million, and adjusted profit attributable to
equity holders was HK$268.1 million.

Sales in China was in line with the country’s economic
growth. With Central Government's support of the IT

and telecommunications sector in general, Kantone
strengthened its sales and marketing activities for its
customised solutions and products. In Europe, the

main markets of UK and Germany have shown signs of
stabilisation, and some of the projects have resumed after
initial delays. Kantone is well-positioned to secure new
long-term contracts, especially in the arena of fire services,
personal security and marine coast guard security.

For e-gaming and online entertainment, Kantone continued
to invest in the enhancement of integrated gaming
technology solutions, online payment channels and sales
network. The lottery legislation passed in China early this
year meant that the China lottery market will be better
regulated, and that China will open up its market gradually,
boding well for innovative service providers like Kantone

to expand its activities into various parts of the lottery
value chain. Nonetheless, these investments are subject
to review periodically to determine if progress is in line

with the original plan and if the anticipated benefits can be
achieved.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”)

Digital HK recorded a loss of HK$1,807,000 on turnover
of HK$3,510,000 for the Year, compared with a loss of
HK$986,000 on turnover of HK$5,018,000 in the Previous
Year. Its performance was affected by customers delaying
or scaling back expenditure on IT amid increasing market
uncertainties. Digital HK will continue to seek suitable
investment opportunities to diversify its revenue streams.
Meanwhile, it has identified healthcare, related IT services
and associated investments in the health sector as the key
driver of future growth.



Financial Position and Gearing
The Group's financial position remained positive with a
low gearing.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group had HK$323 million
made up of deposits, bank balances and cash. Current
assets were approximately HK$1,616 million (2008:
HK$1,529 million) and current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$481 million (2008: HK$489 million).
With net current assets of HK$1,135 million (2008:
HK$1,040 million), the Group had maintained a high
level of financial liquidity. The gearing ratio of the
Group, which calculation was based on the Group’s
total borrowings of HK$390 million (2008: HK$279
million) and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$6,973 million (2008: HK$6,685 million),
was 0.056 (2008: 0.042).

Total borrowings comprised bank borrowings of
HK$215.1 million (2008: HK$250.3 million), bank
overdrafts of HK$38.1 million (2008: HK$27.8 million),
other borrowings, which represented block discounting
loans, of HK$0.2 million (2008: HK$0.7 million), and
convertible redeemable bond with outstanding principal
amount of HK$136.5 million (2008: Nil). Finance costs
for the Year amounted to HK$8.9 million (2008: HK$6.8
million).

The bank borrowings comprised bank loans of
HK$178.0 million (2008: HK$200.9 million) repayable
within one year, HK$4.6 million (2008: HK$4.7 million)
repayable in the second year and HK$32.5 million
(2008: HK$44.3 million) repayable in the third to fifth
year. The mortgage loan of HK$0.4 million outstanding
as at 30 June 2008 was repaid during the Year. Bank
loans of HK$40 million and the mortgage loan were
secured by the Group’s land and buildings with a
carrying value of HK$10.3 million (2008: HK$12.6
million). The bank overdrafts were unsecured and
repayable on demand.

The other borrowings of HK$0.2 million (2008: HK$0.7
million) were unsecured and repayable within one year
(2008: HK$0.5 million repayable within one year and
the remaining balance repayable in the second year).
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In September 2008, the Company issued a convertible
redeemable bond (“Convertible Bond”) in the principal
amount of approximately HK$189 million to Lawnside
International Limited. During the Year, approximately HK$52
million of the principal amount of the Convertible Bond

was redeemed. At 30 June 2009, the outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Bond was approximately HK$137
million.

In May 2009, Kantone raised approximately HK$99

million from a rights issue of Kantone shares on the basis
of one Kantone rights share for every four of Kantone
existing shares held. In June 2009, the Company raised
approximately HK$142 million from a rights issue on the
basis of one rights share for every existing share held. The
net proceeds of both rights issues, totalling approximately
HK$177 million, serve as general working capital.

Treasury Policy

The Group is committed to financial prudence and
maintains a positive financial position with low gearing. The
Group finances its operation and business development
by a combination of internally generated resources, capital
markets instruments and banking facilities.

Other than the Convertible Bond, all the borrowings were
used by subsidiaries of the Company bearing interest

at floating rates. As all the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in their local currencies, the currency risk
exposure associated with them was insignificant.

The Group does not engage in any speculative derivatives
or structured product transactions, interest rate or foreign
exchange speculative activities. It is the Group’s policy to
manage foreign exchange risk through matching foreign
exchange income with expense, and where exposure

to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2009, the Group’s capital commitments
authorised but not contracted for was HK$270 million
(2008: HK$363 million). These commitments are set aside
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and
development of systems and networks.
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As at 30 June 2009, the Group employed about

1,300 staff around the globe. Staff costs for the year
under review were HK$122 million (2008: HK$131
million). Remuneration is determined with reference to
market terms and the performance, qualifications and
experience of the individual employee. Remuneration
includes monthly salaries, performance-linked bonuses,
retirement benefits under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme, and other benefits such as medical scheme.

The Company has established a Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee. In determining the
remuneration of the directors, the committee will
consider factors such as the Company's operating
results, individual performance, salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
the directors have proposed a final dividend of HK0.25
cents per share for the year ended 30 June 2009 (2008:
HKO.25 cents per share) to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company

on 27 November 2009. Taking into account the interim
dividend of HK0.50 cents per share paid on 12 June
2009, total dividend per share would be HKO.75 cents
(2008: HK2.70 cents); and total dividend for the year
would be HK$20.0 million, compared with HK$48.1
million of last year.

The final dividend will be satisfied by allotment of new
shares of the Company, credited as fully paid, by way of
scrip dividend, with an alternative to the shareholders to
elect to receive such dividend (or part thereof) in cash in
lieu of such allotment (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is subject to the granting by the
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited of a listing of and permission to deal in the shares
to be issued pursuant thereto. A circular setting out the
details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme together with the form
of election will be sent to the shareholders of the Company
as soon as practicable.

It is expected that certificates for shares to be issued under
the Scrip Dividend Scheme and dividend warrants will

be despatched to those entitled thereto on or before 22
January 2010.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 25 November 2009 to 27 November 2009, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to qualify for the above
final dividend and the Scrip Dividend Scheme, all transfers
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 26th
Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 24 November 2009.



Paul KAN Man Lok, 62, is the founder and Chairman.
He is also the Chairman and an executive director

of both Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”) and
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”), subsidiaries of
the Company whose shares are listed on the Main Board
and the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Exchange”) respectively. Mr. Kan holds

a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong, and has over 40 years
of experience in the computing and telecommunications
industries. Prior to setting up the Group in 1987, he was
the general manager in charge of Asiadata Limited, a joint
venture computing services company of Cable & Wireless
Group, HSBC, Jardines and Barclays.

Mr. Kan has received a number of prestigious awards
from local and international professional bodies as well

as governments in recognition of his contribution to

the community and the industry. These include Young
Industrialist Award (1992); Hong Kong Business Award-
Enterprise Trophy (1993); Governor’s Award for Hong
Kong Industries (1989); Honorary Doctor of Humane
Letters Degree by the University of Northern Virginia,
United States (2005); Honorary Fellow of the Academy of
Chinese Studies (2005); Commander of the most Excellent
Order of the British Empire (CBE) by Her Majesty Queen
Elizabeth Il (2006); Commendatore dell'Ordine della Stella
della Solidarieta Italiana by the Italian Prime Minister Hon.
Romano Prodi (2006); the Hong Kong SAR Government’s
appointment as a Justice of the Peace (2006); Chevalier
de I'Ordre de la Légion d’Honneur by the Government of
France (2007); and Silver Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong
SAR Government (2009).

In civic duties, Mr. Kan served twice on the Exchange
Corporate Governance Working Group during 1994-1995
and 1999-2000, and was a member of the Listing
Committee of the Exchange for the period 1999-2003. He
is currently the Chairman for the fifth successive term of
the Hong Kong Information Technology Industry Council;
Chairman of Hong Kong IT Alliance; Chairman of the

Hong Kong Trade Development Council Information and
Communications Technology Services Advisory Committee;
Chairman of ICT Working Group, Hong Kong — United
Kingdom Business Partnership; Convener of Hungarian

— Hong Kong Innovative Business Council; Council
Committee Member of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries; and Member of HKSAR Chief Executive Election
Committee for the IT sector. Other memberships include
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Anhui Province in the PRC, and the Election Committee

for the Hong Kong representatives of National People’s
Congress of China.

Mr. Kan also sits on the board of CLP Holdings Limited as
an independent non-executive director.
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Leo KAN Kin Leung, 53, is the Company’s executive
director and the Chief Executive Officer, as well as a non-
executive director of Kantone and Digital HK. He is a
brother of Paul Kan Man Lok, Chairman of the Company.
He is responsible for formulating the Group’s overall

policy and development strategy as well as the Group’s
global operations and management. Prior to joining the
Group in 1988, Mr. Kan held management positions in
several international companies in Hong Kong. He holds a
Master's degree in Business Administration from Dalhousie
University in Canada and a Master’s degree in Economics
from the University of Alberta in Canada. In 2006, Mr. Kan
completed the Oxford Advanced Management Programme
at the Said Business School of the University of Oxford.

Mr. Kan is the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong IT Alliance as
well as the Chairman of its IT Committee. He also serves on
Internet Professional Association as Honorary Secretary and
a Council Member, and Co-Chairman of Special Interest
Group in Venture Capital and New Business Development.
Mr. Kan is Member of the Technical Standards Advisory
Committee at the Office of the Telecommunications
Authority; Member of the CreateSmart Initiative Vetting
Committee of the Hong Kong SAR Government; Member
of the School of Continuing Education Advisory Committee
of the Hong Kong Baptist University; and Member of the
Ad Hoc Committee for International Outreach and Multi-
national Corporations of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries. He serves on a number of sub-committees of the
Hong Kong Information Technology Industry Council of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries, including International
Development and Co-operation Sub-committee and Sub-
vented Funding Sub-committee. In particular, he is the
Convener of China Investment, Development and Co-
operation Sub-committee. Mr. Kan is also an Executive
Committee Member of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Joint Council.

LAI Yat Kwong, 61, is the Group’s executive director and
the Chief Financial Officer, with responsibility for its financial
and accounting policy and control. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer (Acting), Chief Financial Officer and an
executive director of Kantone, as well as a non-executive
director of Digital HK. He joined the Group in March 1994
as Vice President of Internal Audit and Control. In July 1997,
he took on responsibility as the Chief Financial Officer

of Kantone. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and has over 37 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and company secretarial matters. He is a fellow member

of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(Practising).
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Shirley HA Suk Ling, 53, has been a non-executive
director of the Company since November 2004. She is the
Chief Executive Officer and an executive director of Digital
HK, as well as a non-executive director of Kantone. She
joined the Company in 1992 as its Executive Vice President
with responsibility for its corporate development. She has
over 25 years of business experience including 10 years in
investment banking.

Ms. Ha holds a Bachelor’s degree in Arts from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
She currently serves as Member of the Personal Data
(Privacy) Advisory Committee of the Office of the Privacy
Commissioner for Personal Data, Hong Kong; Technical
Advisor (Information Technology and Communication)

for Employees Training Board; and Mentor under the
Mentorship Programme of the Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation. She is a General Committee
Member of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and
Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Information Technology
Industry Council; Council Member of Internet Professional
Association and Co-Chairman of Special Interest Group in
Venture Capital and New Business Development; Senior
Member of the Hong Kong Information Technology Joint
Council; and member of the Hong Kong Corporate Counsel
Association. She is also Honorary Secretary of Hungarian —
Hong Kong Innovative Business Council.

Terry John MILLER, 70, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 1992. Previously,
he held the position of Deputy Chief Executive at Hong
Kong Telecommunications Limited, and was the Regional
Director, Asia/Pacific, of Cable & Wireless PLC. He is a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and is the former president of the Hong Kong
Institute of the International Association of Financial
Executives.

Francis Gilbert KNIGHT, 79, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since February
2000. He is also the Chairman of the audit committee. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Digital HK in March 2000. Mr. Knight is the Chairman
and Managing Director of Asian Security and Investigation
Services Limited. He has over 20 years’ experience in

the field of copyright protection, security and commercial
investigations, and acts as security adviser to a number
of major organisations. Mr. Knight is a member of the
International Association of Police Chiefs; a member of
the Hong Kong Intellectual Property Society; and a fellow
of each of the British Institute of Directors and the British
Institute of Management. He is also a former President of
the American Society for Industrial Security (Hong Kong
Branch).

Frank BLEACKLEY, 72, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since November 2001.
He is also an independent non-executive director of
Kantone. He was formerly Managing Director of Chubb
China Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Chubb Security
Group, a manufacturer and distributor of security and
safety products and systems headquartered in the United
Kingdom. He has more than 30 years of experience in the
management and business development of joint venture
companies in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

LEE Chi Wah, 52, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company and a member of
the Audit Committee and the Regulatory Affairs Committee
of the Company since 1 July 2009. He is currently the Chief
Technology Officer of a consultancy firm and has over 28
years’ professional experience with several international
IT&T organisations for major roles in the areas of technical
project development, customer services and sales
management, including serving the Group from 1988 to
1994 with his last position as Vice President, Technology
and Chief Technical Officer. He holds a Master’'s degree in
Business Administration from University of Western Sydney
in Australia and a Bachelor of Science honours degree in
Electronic Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is also a Chartered Professional Engineer — IT & E
(MIEAust CPENg) and Chartered National Professional
Engineers Register (NPER) of The Institution of Engineers,
Australia.

Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha, 53, has been the Company
Secretary since 1992. She is a solicitor practising in Hong
Kong. She is also the Company Secretary of Kantone and
Digital HK.

Francis KAN, 61, is Executive Vice President, Systems
Development, and has held positions of responsibility in
information technology, both in Hong Kong and abroad,
for over 20 years. Since 1994, he has been responsible

for the operations and expansion of the Group’s systems,
overseeing all Internet-related activities and alliances with
major partners. He is a brother of Paul Kan Man Lok. Mr.
Kan has a Master’s degree from the University of Alberta in
Canada.



Iris KOO Kin Hing, 45, is Senior Vice President, Finance,
overseeing all financial operations of the Group. She is
based in Macau. Before joining the Group in 1989, she
worked at an international accounting firm where she

had gained valuable experience. She holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is a Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

FUNG Kin Leung, 48, is Senior Vice President of
Microelectronics. He is responsible for managing the
Group's research and development capacity to facilitate
its global operations. He is also a director of several of

the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Fung has over 20 years’
experience in software and product development. He
joined the Group in 1987 as Technical Manager, and was
promoted through the ranks to his current position. In
recent years, he has been focusing on the development of
information delivery systems to enhance wireless Internet
applications. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Science and
Electronics from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a Master’s degree in Electronics Engineering from the
University of Hong Kong. He is a Chartered Engineer as
well as a member of the Institution of Electrical Engineers
and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Luiz Octavio VILLA-LOBOS, 48, is Vice President of
Interactive Knowledge Delivery for the Group’s International
Operations, overseeing international clients’ requirements
for enterprise solutions. He is also Managing Director

of Kantone’s Brazilian operations with responsibility for
running and developing business in South America. He
joined the Group in 1997 and set up from its inception

the business in Brazil. He holds a Master’s degree in
Aerospace Engineering from Sup’Aero in France and an
MBA from the London Business School.

WANG Yu Peng, 44, was appointed as Chief Operating
Officer, e-Lottery Business at Kantone in September 2005.
He is the founder of a member company of the Group
which is a pioneer systems developer and service provider
in paperless betting systems in China, and a graduate of
Tsing Hua University in Computer Science. He owns two
invention patents in telephone betting systems.
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Roy GOSS, 66, is Director of International Business, with
responsibility for the Group’s contract negotiation, licensee
management, agency distribution and customer liaison.
He is based in Macau and is also a director of several of
the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Goss is a seasoned expert

in finance and telecommunications, having served in the
Middle East and Macau with Cable and Wireless companies
for almost 20 years. He is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Prior to
joining the Group, he was the Finance Director of Macau
Telecommunications Company, a subsidiary of Cable and
Wireless PLC, where he worked for more than 17 years.

Stephen GENTRY, 53, is Head of International Businesses
at Kantone and Chief Executive of Multitone, a member
company of the Group, with responsibilities for formulating
the overall policy and development strategy for the Group’s
international operations. He is also a director of several

of the Group’s subsidiaries. He joined the Group in 1988
as financial accountant of the UK operations, and has
considerable experience working for the Group’s various
European and American operations. He was promoted to
the position of Chief Executive of Multitone in 2003 and is a
member of the Institute of Directors.

Frank ROTTHOFF, 46, is Managing Director of German
operations at Kantone. He joined the Group in 2008 and has
extensive experience in sales and marketing management
within the electronics industry. His earlier career covered
international sales of industrial machinery and process
technology before entering the semiconductor sector in
1989. He was responsible for the sales organisation of a
leading European distributor of electronic components
before joining the Group.

Cindy MAK Man Yee, 41, is Vice President, Administration
and Logistics. She is the Group’s primary liaison point

with external organisations and coordinates a wide range
of the Group’s operations in logistics, corporate resource
development and purchasing. She joined the Group after
graduating from the University of Hong Kong in 1990, as a
management trainee and was promoted through the ranks
to her present position. Ms. Mak holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Social Sciences and a Master's degree in Business
Administration. She also serves on the Executive Committee
of Hong Kong IT Alliance.
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Joanne CHIU Yim Fan, 38, is Vice President,
Compliance, with responsibility for promoting good
corporate governance practices for the Company

in accordance with the relevant listing requirements

in Hong Kong. She is also Vice President, Human
Resources, responsible for formulating and
implementing the Group’s human resources policies.
Ms. Chiu graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor’s degree in Arts. She also holds a
Master’s degree in Business Administration and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource
Management. She joined the Group in 1994.

Teresa TONG Seek Fan, 43, is Vice President,
Operations. She runs the Group’s call centre and is
also responsible for customer care, product design
and the retail aspects of the Group'’s business. She
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.
She joined the Group in 1990 and is a member of

the Internet Professional Association and the China
Investment, Development and Co-operation Sub-
committee of the Hong Kong Information Technology
Industry Council.

Julia LEUNG Yiu Lin, 44, is Vice President, Business
Development, with responsibility for sales and
marketing, identifying distributors and sales agents, as
well as liaising with suppliers for the Group’s products
and services. Ms. Leung has served the Group in a
number of key areas since the start of operations in
the 1980’s, having previously worked with Cable and
Wireless Group in Hong Kong. She is also a member
of the International Development and Co-operation
Sub-committee and the Education and Community
Awareness Sub-committee of the Hong Kong
Information Technology Industry Council.

Gary CHOY Kin Chung, 39, is Vice President, China
Investment. He oversees business investment in China
and plays a pivotal role in the execution of the Group’s
growth strategy in China. He is also a member of

the Group’s Investment Committee and a director of
several of the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Choy holds

a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering from
Georgia Institute of Technology, Atlanta, Georgia, USA
and a Master’s degree in Business Administration
(Executive MBA Programme) from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1992
and worked with a number of divisions within the
Group.

Robert SIA Chun Chung, 37, is Vice President,
e-Commerce Projects at Digital HK, with responsibility for
technical management and systems support. He holds

a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from the University

of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in Electronic
Engineering from the Polytechnic University of Hong Kong.
He has been with the Group since 1995 and has worked
with a number of divisions within the Group. He also serves
on the Hong Kong Radio Paging Association and the Hong
Kong IT Alliance as an executive committee member, and
Technical Standards Advisory Committee at the Office of
the Telecommunications Authority as alternate member.



The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2009.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in sales of general systems products,
provision of services (including software customisation and provision
of e-lottery services) and software licensing, leasing of systems
products, investments in telecommunications networks and projects
and e-commerce projects and holding strategic investments in
advanced technology product development companies.

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2009 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 29 and in the
accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. An
interim dividend in scrip form equivalent to HK0.5 cents per share,
with a cash option, was distributed to the shareholders during the
year. A final dividend in scrip form equivalent to HK0.25 cents per
share, with a cash option, is proposed by the directors.

Details of movements in the share capital and warrants of the
Company during the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent
the aggregate of dividend reserve, general reserve, special
reserve, capital redemption reserve and the retained profits of
HK$1,704,099,000 (2008: HK$1,689,972,000).

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 30 June 2009 are
set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong

Non-executive director:
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Terry John Miller

Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight

Mr. Frank Bleackley

Prof. Liang Xiong Jian (retired on 27 November 2008)
Prof. Ye Pei Da (resigned on 30 June 2009)

Mr. Lee Chi Wah (appointed on 1 July 2009)

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Paul Kan Man Lok, Mr. Frank Bleackley and Mr. Lai Yat Kwong will
retire by rotation, and Mr. Lee Chi Wah will retire pursuant to Bye-law
86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Being eligible, they have offered themselves for re-election.

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Mr. Lee Chi Wah has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term commencing on 1 July 2009 (the date of
his appointment) and ending on either the date of the third annual
general meeting of the Company after his first election as a director
of the Company by shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting, or the date on which he shall retire by rotation in annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Bye-laws
of the Company, whichever is the earlier. The other non-executive
directors have been appointed for a term of one year subject to
retirement by rotation as required by the Company’s Bye-laws.
There is no service contract between any of the executive directors
and the Company.

The Company confirms it has received from each of its independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), and it still considers that the independent non-
executive directors are independent.
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Each of the Company and two of its subsidiaries, Kantone Holdings
Limited (“Kantone”) and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK"),
has a share option scheme under which eligible persons, including
directors of the Company, Kantone, Digital HK or any of their
respective subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe for
shares of the Company, Kantone and Digital HK respectively.

Details of the share option schemes of the Company, Kantone
and Digital HK are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other than the share option schemes described in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

As at 30 June 2009, the interests of the directors of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)), which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers were as follows:
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Notes:

1. 1,053,945,731 shares of the Company were held by Lawnside
International Limited (“Lawnside”). Lawnside is beneficially wholly owned
by Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok. As at 30 June 2009, Lawnside held interests in
approximately 26.31% of the entire issued share capital of the Company.
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok was deemed to have corporate interest in these
shares owned by Lawnside. Lawnside also held a convertible bond of
the Company with outstanding principal amount of HK$136,460,805.47
carrying the right to convert the principal amount of the bond or any
part thereof into shares of the Company from 19 September 2008 to
19 September 2010 or, at the option of the Company, extended to 19
September 2011 at the conversion price per share of the higher of (i)
HK$0.77 (after adjustment on 23 May 2009 as a result of the rights issue
of the Company); and (i) the average of the volume-weighted average
prices of shares of the Company for the 10 dealing days ending on the
day immediately preceding the date of a relevant conversion notice
multiplied by a factor of 0.8. A total of 177,221,825 shares are issuable
on full conversion of the bond at HK$0.77 each. The bond has not been
taken into account in calculating the percentage of interest in the issued
share capital of the Company held by Lawnside. Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok
and Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung are directors of Lawnside.

2. 2,750,385,608 shares of Kantone were held by the Company.

3. 117,300,000 shares of Digital HK were held by the Company and
2,669,171 shares of Digital HK were held by Lawnside.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares

in subsidiaries held by directors in trust for the Company or its
subsidiaries, none of the directors or chief executive of the Company
had any interest or short position in the securities, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(as defined in Part XV of the SFO) as at 30 June 2009 as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries, other than
Kantone and its subsidiaries (“Kantone Group”) and Digital HK and
its subsidiaries (“Digital HK Group”), had the following transactions
with Kantone Group and Digital HK Group:

BEMBREEBRAE —Z2NFFR

RAFER - AARMREMBAR(ERRENBA
A(IEREE D ARBBEEREMBAR([HIEE
BEERDBN CEEREERBBETEREELTT
5

Transactions with
Digital HK Group

Transactions with
Kantone Group

HEREE HEEER
ZR5 KBRS
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Fees received for the provision of office premises 2B A8 B U ERIR it
and facilities, and management services, WARE KK
on cost basis RERREER 100 468
Commission paid to the Company by MEHHERR N BB
Kantone for underwriting right shares XNARRAZAE 1,251 -
Annual fee and technical fee paid (Note) SEBRFMER M) = A

Note: Digital HK Group had provided e-payment platform services to a

subsidiary of the Company at a fee chargeable with reference to
comparable market price as agreed.

The Company and Kantone entered into an underwriting agreement
dated 23 March 2009 relating to a rights issue of 1,014,761,471
shares of Kantone at HK$0.10 each whereby the Company

agreed to underwrite 500,253,388 Kantone rights shares at a total
commission of about HK$1,250,633 (the “Kantone Underwriting
Agreement”).

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company, the above transactions (except the Kantone Underwriting
Agreement) were carried out in the usual course of business and on
normal commercial terms and are in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The aforesaid transactions except the Kantone Underwriting
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules and are exempt from the reporting, announcement and
shareholders’ approval disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The Company and Lawnside entered into an underwriting agreement
dated 16 April 2009 relating to a rights issue of 1,990,826,245
shares of the Company at HK$0.10 each whereby Lawnside agreed
to underwrite 1,469,903,337 rights shares at a total commission of
about HK$3,674,758 (the “Champion Underwriting Agreement”).

The Kantone Underwriting Agreement and the Champion
Underwriting Agreement constitute connected transactions of the
Company within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect thereof.

M . BBEERBEREEFNRFERBTARR —HH
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1,014,761 471REBEBRHIT LB BHA-ZTZTNF
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$1500,253,388 Fx B ME B KD - ML BRBLHA
1,250,633 B L[ BB IEHHE]) °
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Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including for
the provision of services to the Group.

As at the 30 June 2009, the following person (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the share capital
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

B EXFREESN - AR B REAEMNE A RRES
BRTEANEE S AR R I AN AR E RIS R (DR 2
BANRETERAMRETEAEEZERAN -

B EXFEREESN  AEEEARRLEEFNIER
Bl ERBRR(ERR EWARRAD I E|IT L EMERA
H(BRERASERERY)

RZBTAFAAS+E - REESRBREDIE
SBHA R AVET R BRMAMES - THIALR
DAE FATHARB ) AR ABRARABBR
P S

Approximate

Number of  percentage
Number Description of  underlying of issued
Name of shareholder Capacity of shares derivatives shares share capital
HEBTRE
RRE® 514 RGHEE FTEIRHE HERGHBAE 2B =
Lawnside (Note) Beneficial owner 1,053,945,731 - - 26.31%
(FifzE) EnBBA
Beneficial owner = Convertible redeemable 177,221,825 4.42%
EnBEBA bond convertible
into shares
ARARRGZ
AARAIERES
Note:  See Note 1 to the section headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Wizt . 2R[EFZHFFERRAE | —HHE -

Positions in Securities”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2009, no person had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company according to the register of interests kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

During the year, the Company had convertible bond and warrants
set out in notes 29 and 31 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements. Other than the convertible bond, the Company and

its subsidiaries had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or other similar rights as at 30 June 2009. Particulars of the
exercise of warrants or similar rights during the year are set out in
the aforesaid notes.

B EXREEEIN  RZZZAFANA=TR - B
RRAFIREF MGG FEIB6FEFEZR A ERE
it BEEMA TRAA B Z B LBRERO TS
FfeiEzsokR -

REERN - AREEE D BISN G A M BREMEE29
R31Z AT B R R RE  BRATHRE SR SN - R
RAINEMBRARR ZZTAFNA =+ AL EER
HARTTE 2 TR - BB - RIEE L E AR
PURER - RAEE B LEFN R FERNZITEFBOH
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Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

The Group sells its products to customers who act as its distributors,
and purchases materials and components from suppliers who act as
its merchandisers.

For the year ended 30 June 2009, the aggregate amount of turnover
and purchases attributable to the five largest ultimate customers
and suppliers through these distributors and merchandisers
respectively represented less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover
and purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in the share capital of the five
largest customers or suppliers of the Company.

The remuneration policy of the Group for its employees takes into
account of the individuals’ merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the Company,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. Details of the
directors’ emoluments for the year ended 30 June 2009 are set out
in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

A resolution will be proposed at the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

PAUL KAN MAN LOK
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
20 October 2009
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) in the
year ended 30 June 2009.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors of the
Company, and they have confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 30 June
20009.

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group'’s
activities with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholders value.

The Board met 9 times during the year ended 30 June 2009. Its
composition and the attendance of individual directors at these
board meetings were as follows:
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ARBBNEFRKF2EEER - REE-ZTTAH
FRA=ZTALFEARN ARFEETEEHARS
FrARARZES EMARIT EmRA ) dE14] b2
ERTEARTR(TFRAI D Ptz SRR o

AATBERE L HRAM SN LT AR ESRE
TREFRHMEEST A (MHRETR DOER - LES
ETRFXZRM—EBRT T -

ARBERAARRZBEREHFEEH  HEES
PERANBE_ZTENFAA=THILFEANGH
BT IRAEST AR IR E IR -

ARRFEEE([EX2G])EE  REARREER
ERAQNR -ERAERTREEAEE S - #£
RIGEAREBRKD) - EERHITAEEEL 2K
BRI - EEBIGABR LI REE

EZgNEE—TENFRNAZTHILFERARET
OREH - HERRBLRREENZEEFTEEHL
HEERESMT

Number of meetings
held during the
director’s term of office

Number of
meetings attended

RESBEH
Name e BETEBERE FRHEEERE
Executive directors BITES
Paul KAN Man Lok (Chairman) 3L (£)E) 9 9
Leo KAN Kin Leung* (Chief Executive Officer) B8R R *(7TEAEZE) 9 9
LAl Yat Kwong Ak 9 9
Non-executive director FHITES
Shirley HA Suk Ling B% 9 9
Independent non-executive directors BAUKHITES
Terry John MILLER g 9 8
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT Francis Gilbert KNIGHT 9 9
Frank BLEACKLEY Frank BLEACKLEY 9 8
Prof. YE Pei Da* B KR 9 5
Prof. LIANG Xiong Jian## R R+ 1 1
*  Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung is a brother of Mr. Paul KAN Man Lok. * BEBRAEREXELEZNS -

#  Prof. YE Pei Da resigned as an independent non-executive director of the #

Company on 30 June 2009.

##  Prof. LIANG Xiong Jian retired as an independent non-executive director ##

of the Company on 27 November 2008.

ERAHER_ZENFRNA=ZTHEHEARRRELIE
WITES -

RIERBER=ZENF+—-A=TLRREARFE
VIEHITES o

Mr LEE Chi Wah was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company; and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Regulatory Affairs Committee of the Company on 1 July 2009.
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The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are segregated, with a clear division of responsibilities.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting

its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by other
directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is
responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are followed by the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

The non-executive directors of the Company are appointed either for
(i) a term of 1 year and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) every 3
years in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company; or (ii) a term
ending on either the date of the third AGM after being first elected
as a director by shareholders of the Company at a general meeting
or the date on which the director shall retire by rotation at an AGM

in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, whichever is the
earlier.

The Human Resources & Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) has 3 members, comprising Mr.
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT and Mr. Terry John MILLER (independent
non-executive directors); and Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung (executive
director). The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Francis
Gilbert KNIGHT.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the
guidelines set out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other
things, making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy for the remuneration of directors and senior management.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Remuneration Committee
met 2 times and work performed includes reviewing the Group’s
remuneration policy for its executive directors and senior
management and their levels of remuneration. All members attended
these meetings.
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The Nomination Committee has 5 members, comprising Mr. Frank
BLEACKLEY, Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT and Mr. Terry John
MILLER (independent non-executive directors); and Ms. Shirley
HA Suk Ling (non-executive director); and Mr Paul KAN Man

Lok (executive director). This Committee is chaired by Mr. Frank
BLEACKLEY.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and making recommendations to the Board for
decision. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-election
by shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/her
appointment. Under the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders
every 3 years.

Potential new directors are selected on the basis of their
qualifications, skills and experience which the Nomination
Committee considers will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, Mr. LEE Chi Wah had been
nominated for appointment as an independent non-executive
director of the Company. He was appointed on 1 July 2009 and a
resolution will be proposed to re-elect Mr. LEE as an independent
non-executive director of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee met 3 times during the year ended 30
June 2009 and work performed includes reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company. All members
attended these meetings.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 30 June 2009, the directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have
prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going-
concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached
to the Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June
20009.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of

the Group’s internal control system with an aim to safeguard

the shareholders’ investment and the Company's assets in
compliance with the provisions of the Code. The purpose is to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in achieving the Group’s business
objectives.
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For the year ended 30 June 2009, the fee for the Company’s external
auditors for audit services was HK$6,143,000 (2008: HK$5,740,000)
and that for non-audit services mainly relating to taxation matters,
the rights issues of Kantone and the Company completed in

May 2009 and June 2009 respectively and other services was
HK$1,517,000 (2008: HK$588,000).

The Audit Committee has 4 members, comprising Mr. Francis
Gilbert KNIGHT, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Mr. Terry John MILLER
(independent non-executive directors); and Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling
(non-executive director). The Chairman of this Committee is Mr.
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the guidelines
set out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other things,
reviewing the Group’s financial information and its financial reporting
and internal control system.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Audit Committee met 2
times and work performed includes reviewing the Group’s interim
and annual results as well as its internal control system. All members
attended these meetings.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Champion
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 29 to 105,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2009,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement

for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2009
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended

in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 October 2009
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2009 #HZ=ZEZEAFANF=1+HIFE

2009 2008
—ZEAE ZTT)N\F
NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
k=3 FHERT FHET

Turnover e 6 2,923,103 3,635,049
Direct operating expenses BEEEERA (2,291,827) (2,346,833)
Gross profit SRk 631,276 1,288,216
Other income HAA 7 15,648 29,053
Distribution costs SR (47,572) (53,580)
General and administrative expenses — M RITE H (187,279) (262,104)
Impairment losses recognised for MAHHERE

available-for-sale investments FriER 2 BEEE 19 (104,197) (56,502)
Impairment losses recognised for BRG LML 2 B

development costs for systems and networks g2 2 BEEE 16 (164,580) (436,488)
Impairment losses recognised for deposits and  FtiE® R IBFFZEKR A

prepaid development costs PR 2 B EE1E 21 (40,560) (245,310)
Discount on acquisition of U BB BB A RIEESN

additional interest in subsidiaries W 2 T 8 62,326 2,860
(Loss) gain on deemed disposal of WRRHEMBATZ

a subsidiary (B518) Ue2s 9 (51,839) 196
Loss on fair value change of AR ES AT EEEE

convertible bonds 18 = (2,282)
Finance costs B SR AN 10 (8,943) (6,781)
Profit before taxation B A Al 11 104,280 257,278
Taxation 1A 12 (1,062) (2,063)
Profit for the year RF E i A 103,218 255,215
Attributable to: FEAE A :

Equity holders of the Company RAFRARERFEEA 74,630 190,456

Minority interests DERE RS 28,588 64,759

103,218 255,215

Earnings per share BB 14

— Basic — &K HK2.31 HK7.12

cents &1l cents 71l
— Diluted — HK2.23 HK6.98

cents &l cents Al
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2009 2008
—EThF ZTTNEF
NOTE HK$°000 HK$'000
Fit 3 FET FHT
Non-current assets EMEEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B REE 15 54,197 58,586
Development costs for systems and R R A2
networks FAZERK 2N 16 3,138,721 2,743,823
Goodwill SES 17 36,795 36,795
Intangible assets mEE 18 2,950 5,310
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 19 1,088,980 1,509,822
Interest in an associate R—EE AR 2w 20 - -
Deposits and prepaid development costs e RIEMFEKRAR 21 2,933,357 2,563,105
7,255,000 6,917,441
Current assets mENEE
Inventories FE 22 24,551 25,464
Trade and other receivables FENE 5 R H AR 23 1,268,884 1,152,497
Taxation recoverable BEES 25 29
Deposits, bank balances and cash TR ROTBEERBR S 24 322,706 350,728
1,616,166 1,628,718
Current liabilities MEAE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 READRK 25 121,576 248,931
Warranty provision REREE 26 1,513 2,136
Customers’ deposits BEZRE 3,935 6,275
Taxation payable FEREIIE 1,051 2,009
Bank borrowings RITEE
—amount due within one year —R—FREIE 27 178,043 201,313
Other borrowings HiEE
—amount due within one year —R—FREIE 28 176 489
Convertible bond gk ES 29 136,461 =
Bank overdrafts RITEY 24 38,148 27,816
480,903 488,969
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,135,263 1,039,749
Total assets less current liabilities BELBERREBDAE 8,390,263 7,957,190
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE
—amount due after one year — R —F1& 5|5 27 37,026 48,952
Other borrowings HiEE
— amount due after one year — R —F1&EIE 28 - 193
Retirement benefit obligations RRAE AN 11 71,289 92,283
Deferred taxation RIERIR 30 143 157
108,458 141,585
Net assets BEFE 8,281,805 7,815,605
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2009 2008
—EBhE —TTN\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
M E FET FHET
Capital and reserves ARA B
Share capital (%N 31 400,553 197,450
Reserves #1E 6,572,792 6,487,556
Equity attributable to equity holders of RAFRAERTE A
the Company FEAG AR A 2 6,973,345 6,685,006
Minority interests DR 1,308,460 1,130,599
8,281,805 7,815,605
The consolidated financial statements on pages 29 to 105 were BOEZFI5EAMB AAMBREENR TN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 FTAZTHHESEMRIRRETIE - WHTHIE
October 2009 and are signed on its behalf by: EREESE -
Paul KAN Man Lok &3 4 Leo KAN Kin Leung B2 R

DIRECTOR % DIRECTOR %
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FARBARRRAARL
Capital Subscription
Share  Share  Dividend redemption  General  Capital  Merger Translation  Retained right ~ Minority Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  profits Total  reserve interests equity
&% RR JERR  RAER
Rrx  BEEE BERE RERE -REE  BAERE  GHRE  ENRE  RERH i i s 85
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HK$000
Thr Thr TR AR TAn TR TR TR TR TR TER TR TEn
At 1 duly 2007 RERLELA-A 160362 1582287 561 5 1366003 105495 83%  (9100) 2868140 6137672 4639 1051710 7,194,021
Exchange diferencg arising on REEFENL
ranslation of operations outside ERMELTER
Hong Kong recognised directly RRAERAETZ
inequiy Ejzs - - - - - - Y -1 -0 3413
Proftfor the year EREH = = = = = = = - 19045 190456 - BT 25215
Totalrecognised income and FREERL
expense for the year g - - - - - - - 1402 190456 191858 - 6670 298628
Issue of shares upon exercise of
warrants 503  759% - - - - - - - 81888 - 28 8209
Exercise of subscription rights - - - - - - - - - - 310) 1932 1701
Conversion of convertble bond - - - - - - - - - - - %6 366
Subscription right of HBATREE
asubsidiary lapsed XM = S = = = o - - 1188 1,188 (2329 114 -
Dividends for the year KEERE
~underprovision n prior year - HERRTR = - 1816 - - - - - (1819) - - - -
~inteim - - ) - - - - - ) - - - -
~final -Bx o = 493% = = = = - (A9 = = = =
Dividends paid EfikE - - (W4 = = = = = - (#140) = - (W4
ssueof shares as sorpdividend — EIRR S ERE 435 588 (E8163) - - - - - - - - - -
Dividends paid fo minorty interests PO SR ZKE - - - - - - - - - - - (R (4230)
Issue of shares as considerations for &7 EBE
acquistion of subsidiaries HERFZRE %6800 286760 - - - - - - - 313560 - - 313560
Deemed acqistton of HERRE-FNELR
additional inferests ina subsiciary ~ BjMER - - - - - - - - - - - (2860)  (2860)
3088 416503 (51,191 - - - - - (46924 305476 (4639) 12119 362,066
At 30 June 2008 R-3%/\5rA=1R 197450 1998740 493 5 1366003 10549 8358 (769) 3011672 6,685,006 - 1130599 7815605
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRARBRESEARLE
Capital
Share Share  Dividend redemption  Gemeral  Capital ~ Merger Translation  Retained Minority Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve profits Total  interests equity
-0 JERR  BAEE
Bk ROEE RSBE  WERE  -BBE  BAEE  SHEE  EXRR  REN At | 1 85
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS00O  HKS000  HKSO00  HK$000
Tin Thn Thn T Tin Thn T Tin Thn T Tin Thn
At1 July 2008 RZTENFLA-H 197450 1998740 4936 5 1366008 105495 8,358 (7.698) 3011672 6685006 1,130,599 7,815,605
Exchange difference arising REERAELNINZ
ontranslation of operations $BMELIER
outside Hong Kong recogrised ~~ KRAEREERZ
directly in equity EiZR - - - - = = -7 B (- X
Proft for the year ERgf] - = - - - - - - TAB0 T4B0 28588 103218
Total recognised income and FRERRL
expense for the year W8 - - = = = = -7 B0 82400 3110 118570
Issue of shares upon exercise of TR IR
warrants AR - 1 = = = = = = = 1 = 1
Issue of shares of a subsidiary RiTEARERST
Upon exercise of warrants —HHBAR R - - - - - - - = = = 104 104
Issue of shares of asubsidiaryas T RHBATZ
consideration for el
acquision of subsidiaries ZRE - - - - - - - - - - 048 380448
Dividends for the year AFERE
- interim —H - -0 = = = = ) = = =
~final -#% - - 10014 - - - - - (10014) - - -
Dividends paid BARE - - (129 = = = = = - (g - (129
lssueof shares as sorip dhidend ~ E{TRIAMMEAMRKE 4020 3862 (168 - - - - - - - - -
Issue of shares of subsidlary s~ E/T—RMBATZRA
scrip dividend IMEBLBRKE = = = = = = = = = - B3 (5380
Dividends paid to minoriy interests A 8RR 2 k& = = = = = = = = = - B (374
lssue of shares onrighis issue of ~ EAR R RE TR
the Company 199,083 - - - - - - - - 199083 - 199,083
Share issue expenses BUESTF - (4m) = = = = = = - (54m) - (b4
Capital contrbutions flom JERRETE
minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - - %33 308
Acquistion of addiional YE—FNEAR
interests in a subsiciary BiMER - - - - - - - - - - (265040)  (265.040)
Deemed capital controution fom ~ RiE AT ERETE
substanial shareholder (nots) (Hi3t) - - - - - 19541 - - - 19541 - 1954
203,103 (1,815) 5078 - - 19,541 - - (19968 205939 141691 347,630
At 30 June 2009 RZZEAERA=TA 400553 1996925 10,014 5 1366008 125036 8,358 723066334 6973345 1308460 8,281,805
Note:  During the year, the Company acquired 299,290,629 shares of Mzt :  FR - KATABREL188,553,000% T - B

Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”) from Lawnside International

Limited (“Lawnside”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, for

a total consideration of about HK$188,553,000. The consideration

was satisfied entirely by the issue of the convertible bond of the
Company, (see note 29). The difference of HK$19,541,000 between
the consideration and the decrease in the carrying amount of

minority interests in Kantone of HK$208,094,000 is considered

as a deemed contribution from the substantial shareholder and is

therefore recognised directly in equity.

AR A E B E Lawnside International Limited
(TLawnside ] ) $2#5299,290,629 Xk E B EEFR 2
AIEBDRG - REFBBEITAR A ARRES
BT (RKIEE29) - WENREBUERD SRR E
5 AR {8 2 L 18 208,094,000 7T 2 = 5819,541,000
BLIERAETERFTE  AHRBRA RS EERE
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The general reserve represents the reserve arising from the
reduction of the nominal amount of the shares of the Company
(after the consolidation of shares of 25 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each into 1 share in 2002) of HK$2.5 each by cancelling the paid
up capital to the extent of HK$2.4 on each share of the Company in
2002.

The merger reserve represents the reserve arising from the group
reorganisation in 1992.

The capital reserve represents the amount arising from a bonus issue
of shares of a subsidiary of the Company by way of capitalising the
subsidiary’s retained profits and deemed capital contribution from a
substantial shareholder.

—REBIARTN BT _FIABREREE.1E
T EBRAGHRIRETRDAME - EEHEAR
AR 2 BRI (CAEIR2.4 BTRR) 277 - Hl
REESREER25ETLZ BN EEMEEZ FHE -

EHRBBENAEER - NN _FEEABRELZ#
f#

BRRFE AR —BHBERRUREBENERNEZ
FRBTARKMELZ SN REE R —REER
R2EE -
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2009 2008
—EENF —EEN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEB L REnE
Profit before taxation R BT A 104,280 257,278
Adjustments for: REE
Depreciation of property, M - R RERETE
plant and equipment 9,576 12,440
Amortisation of development costs for R A2
systems and networks B 2 85 876,905 713,070
Amortisation of intangible assets M EE 2 2,360 2,360
Impairment losses recognised for MATHHERE
available-for-sale investments FiER .2 BB E1E 104,197 56,502
Impairment losses recognised for LSy L
development costs for systems and KRR
networks BB 164,580 436,488
Impairment losses recognised for Bire RERFEAR
deposits and prepaid development costs FTigR .2 BB 18 40,560 245,310
Impairment loss recognised for property, HE - BE KR
plant and equipment PR 2 BB B 1E = 5,085
Discount on acquisition of IR BT A 7]
additional interest in subsidiaries RBHMERS 2 T (62,326) (2,860)
Loss (gain) on deemed disposal of WRAHEHRBRRZ
a subsidiary BB () 51,839 (196)
Gain on disposal of property, HEDE - BEK
plant and equipment Az s (34) (164)
Interest on bank and other borrowings and RITREMEEZ
finance charges MERMBER 8,943 6,781
Interest income FIBWA (5,199) (8,577)
Loss on fair value change of ABRRESATER
convertible bonds BE) 2 kB = 2,282
Operating cash flows before movements LEEREPR LY
in working capital Beme 1,295,681 1,725,799
Decrease in inventories FERm 913 4,985
(Increase) decrease in trade and FEWE 5 R HERFK 2
other receivables (3% h0) k> (116,387) 49,830
(Decrease) increase in trade and JENE 5Kk
other payables HibBRIR 2 Caid )3 (127,355) 153,937
(Decrease) increase in warranty provision REBECHD)M (309) 276
Decrease in customers’ deposits BREZRD (2,340) (3,528)
Cash generated from operations BEELEZES 1,050,203 1,931,299
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BREIEAFEM - 222
Taxation in other jurisdictions (paid) refunded (2 4i#) R EE A 5% RFHIE (1,661) 54
Net cash from operating activities KEEBFIS 2 RS FE 1,048,542 1,931,575
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2009 2008
—EENEF —ZEENF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
B = FHET FHET
Cash flows from investing activities REZGH RERE
Deposits and prepayments paid in respect of ~ ARARA MBHK 2
development costs for FER A2
systems and networks BitiRe RIERFHIE (1,351,272) (2,052,804)
Payments for development costs for ES ST
systems and networks FE KA Z 3R (167,310) (319,800)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEDE  BEREE (11,647) (8,910)
Capital receipts from A ERE T2
available-for-sale investments f=N 316,645 437,310
Interest received B HFE 5,199 8,577
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME - BEREE
plant and equipment FiG 2 508 460 364
Acquisition of a subsidiary I — R B AR 33 - (50,000)
Net cash used in investing activities BEEDERSFRE (1,207,925) (1,985,263)
Cash flows from financing activities MEETBH RERE
Net cash receipt from right issue HARFTIER & F 8 (BB
(net of issue costs of HK$5,478,000) 5,478,000/ 702 1T ER) 141,513 =
Net cash receipt from rights issue of —EMTE A B PTER &
a subsidiary (net of issue costs of JF 88 (B HIBR 1,413,000 7T
HK$1,413,000) ZETER) 35,303 =
Repayment of borrowings BEES (418,702) (2,694)
New loans raised HESEZER 383,000 21,283
Dividends paid BARE (7,208) (41,140)
Proceeds from exercise of subscription rights 17 2E#E A5 2 708 - 17,011
Dividends paid to minority shareholders EXNTFLERRZRE (3,744) (42,340)
Interest paid BARFE (8,943) (6,781)
Redemption of convertible bond HE [ AT R AR (R 5 = (780)
Proceeds received upon exercise of warrants 1R EE U 2 FUR 1 82,091
Proceeds received upon exercise of warrants ~ 17{& — M B AT
of a subsidiary RIREF Dz A 113 =
Net cash from financing activities MEEHEE S FE 121,333 26,650
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRALFBIADFE (38,050) (27,038)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FIRE R
the year ReEH 322,912 347,482
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes kg s ZE (304) 2,468
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ~ F#&H 4 RIS S5 284,558 322,912
Represented by BIE
Deposits, bank balances and cash TR RITEFERES 322,706 350,728
Bank overdrafts RITIEY (38,148) (27,816)
284,558 322,912




BEMBREEBRAE —E2NFFR

For the Year Ended 30 June 2009 #HZ=ZEZEAFANF=1+HIFE

The Company was originally incorporated in the Cayman Islands
but subsequently re-domiciled to Bermuda and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the Corporate Information section of the annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries and principal associates are set out
in notes 38 and 20 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar because the Company is a public company with
its shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The
functional currency of the Company is United States dollar.

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards (the “HKAS”),
HKFRSs, amendments and interpretations (collectively referred
to as “new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are or have
become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

Reclassification of financial assets

HK(IFRIC) - INT 9 &
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

Embedded derivatives

HK(IFRIC) - INT 12 Service concession arrangements

HK(IFRIC) - INT 13 Customer loyalty programmes

HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined
benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction

HK(IFRIC) - INT 14

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how
the results and financial position of the Group for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

AARRERNFAEHSEMKT - EEREBME
BRE  ERMHETEBMEXSMARAR([H
RETDERET « ARREMPERERERE!
HEZ A ERNFRZ CEEE P RE -

ARARAE—HEREERAT  HIBQE RS
NRAZEBEKE D RIHMRHIFE38 %20 °

FEMBREDAELZETR  METRERRZ
WREEH - ERAR B RBRMORE R ER £
ZRBRTE  MABTREFNERE -

WAEE - AEBERA THEESHEA® (A
THRBAIEEGFEIRE DIEM 2 HET RGBT
EFREHEAATREAIFEGTER]) - &
BB REER - BT RRB (BB TEEH
BHEEA]) -

B G TR E39%
KBS BREER
FTHRUEETA)

5 (ERMBRE2E
ZEE)-REFR
REBEBGEA
3 (BETA)

BE (BRI BRERE
ZEE)-R2BE125%

BB (ERHBERERE
ZEE)-REFE13H

HE(EBRHBRERE
ZES)-2BE145R

BB EE

ANETETA

RS s Fr i 2

EFLatEl

BEGTERE195% -
RERNEERE
REEREREA
HERBF

R EAM B REENHARERASBE
BT HIMEARMBAR RN RER R 2577 XA HE
EARE - Bt - BEAFLBEFRE)FE -
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The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8
HK(FRIC) - INT 15

HK(IFRIC) - INT 16
HK(IFRIC) - INT 17

HK(IFRIC) - INT 18

Improvements to HKFRSs !
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 2

Presentation of financial statements 3

Borrowing costs 2

Consolidated and separate financial
statements *

Puttable financial instruments and
obligations arising on liquidation

Eligible hedged items *

Cost of an investment in a subsidiary,
jointly controlled entity or associate

Additional exemptions for first-time
adopters ®
Vesting conditions and cancellations 2

Group cash-settled share-based
payment transactions
Business combinations *

Improving disclosures about
financial instruments 3

Operating segments 3

Agreements for the construction of
real estate 3

Hedges of a net investment in a
foreign operation

Distribution of non-cash assets to
owners 4

Transfer of assets from customers ¢

T Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
except for the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009,

1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate.

o o &

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008.
Effective for transfers on or after 1 July 2009.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is

on or after 1 July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the
accounting treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary. The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material impact on
the results and the financial position of the Group.

AREE W MEARF AT B E 5 R
#E] RAEETRA - BRTRE -

EEMBRELEN(ETA) BEAUBWMEERZ

iy

ERMBRELNBIR) —ZTNFREUB
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BEEERHERFER2RER PhEEMIAR
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BEMBREERE IR R
BB EIERISE7R (BT K)
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BB BREERE1H BEIERINE 2 BN G
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 30
June each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess
of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that

the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Regarding acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries,
any excess of the decrease in the minority interests of the
subsidiaries over the cost of the additional acquisition is
recognised as discount on acquisition and credited to
consolidated income statement immediately. For acquisition
of additional interests in subsidiaries from substantial
shareholders, any excess of the decrease in the carrying
amount of minority interests of the subsidiary over the cost of
the additional acquisition is considered as deemed contribution
from the substantial shareholder and is therefore recognised
directly in equity.

BETURTFEEFEZERTANI  HEH
BME TIRIBE LB R AR S -

RAMBRENRBESHNASRMONTEY
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BAXSMERARES MR RAIRES QB F
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SAMBREEEARAIEMNBRARNEBEESF
NA=tTBRIEZMBHRS -

FARBIEEZMBRAR ZEEIREE BN E
ZERAZBBERAR  RHEHEEHELUA
b FFAGREBRRERA -

WERE  MEARZHBERESELAR - U
FEHEHBREAREEMKE AR MERE —
B o

PERENERZS  BRRKRIREEKRE RS

FAMNBARBEFENZ VBB R EREARE
BEREREEIHZN - BEFERZ DB
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B BRIBBRREAABORNIZEETRERNT
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Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant subsidiary, at the date of acquisition.
Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwiill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivables
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Service income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Income from software licensing is recognised when the relevant
licensing agreements are formally concluded.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Guaranteed distribution income from certain available-for-
sale investments where the Group is contracted to receive a
pre-determined minimum sum over the period of the projects
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the investment in these available-
for-sale investments. Income from other available-for-sale
investments are recognised when the Group’s right to receive
the distributions has been established.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties under operating leases, is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Costs incurred by the Group in establishing its
telecommunications networks include, among other things,
property and equipment, internally developed and acquired
software and the acquisition of required license.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
after taking into account their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land Over the shorter of the remaining
unexpired terms of the
relevant leases or 50 years

Buildings 2% - 5%

Plant and machinery and

telecommunications networks 10% - 50%
Furniture and fixtures 20% - 33'/3%
Motor vehicles 25%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected

to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or

loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated income
statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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Owner-occupied leasehold interest in land

The land and buildings elements of a lease of land and
buildings are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, in which case,
the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease.

Impairment (other than goodwill, development
costs for systems and networks and financial
assets)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for

the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair
value at the acquisition date respectively. After initial recognition,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when the asset
is derecognised.

Research and development expenditures
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined
project will be recovered through future commercial activity.
The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its
useful life, and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred.
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Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Deposits and prepaid development costs
Deposits and prepaid development costs represent the
development costs for systems and networks projects under
construction. Deposits and prepaid development costs are
transferred to development costs for systems and networks
when it is implemented for its intended use. Deposits and
prepaid development costs are stated at cost less impairment.

Development costs for systems and networks
Development costs for systems and networks are stated at cost
less amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Development costs for systems and networks represent all
direct costs incurred by the Group in setting up systems and
networks, including the cost of equipment, development cost
and subcontracting expenditure. Such assets are recognised
only if all of the following conditions are met:

— the technical feasibility of completing the asset so that it will
be available for use or sale.

— its intention to complete the asset and use or sell it.
— its ability to use or sell the asset.

— how the asset will generate probable future economic
benefits. Among other things, the entity can demonstrate
the existence of a market for the output of the asset or the
asset itself or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of
the asset.

HE

RABE R A R 2 P g e & B A B
EEMBAZHEE - AIFRERE - TEEMA
EMEEEEE -

AEBENER LA

KEREZ RSB AR ERAEMRIRERELE
ERABEHERAER - B RRHEEEEZ R
VEERASMAMEEEE KBS IR
HERNZERERER /R

FEEEAHFHEA
R ENRS AN RS
B3R - ABRET TSR BRI
i - BESERENEERNERAHE X
R -

B REMRBEE

Be RANRERAEERTZ ZRLBHKEAR
ZRBKA - BE RIENBEERARERER S
BB EBRRRARLBRIFERE - ZE2R
TES RSB R THRAR AR B

AR BHE 2 FRBAEA
R R AR 2 BB A TH IR RN R B 5 A A7 R
FORER1RSIRR

AR MBI RBRARBAEBNRIL AR LA
MEFELZMEERKA  BRERERAK - 7
BRARINER - ZFEEER THIMA GMF
SRR T HERERR

— BEEAERA AR 2 AT
e

~ REAERAL TAERRME 2B -

- BEERAHEAEZLSN -

— AEBWTERATMEELE - BABER
o ERARRAE HRNAEASFH

5 HHEEHANESER - ARTEEZ
AR -



CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2009

For the Year Ended 30 June 2009 EZ_-ZEZENFNH=+HIFFE

Development costs for systems and networks

(Continued)

— the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the asset.

— its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the asset during its development.

Development costs that cannot fulfil the above conditions are
recognised as expenses in the period in which it is incurred.
Development costs for systems and networks which are
available for its intended use and fulfil the above conditions are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, subject to a maximum of five years. Where the recoverable
amount of development costs for systems and networks has
declined below their carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to reflect the decline in value.

An item of development costs for systems and networks is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of

the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the

asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified into one of the
two categories, including loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of each category of financial assets are set out below.

EN YN E e NG )

— BBRMEM - BB REMEIRATRRE
MERKHEZEE -

b
B

|
an>

ARG EREEMEMRERG ZH

Kt

REEW R Ll (2 B R A E £ B ER A
i e AIEHEE Mg B Aem R i i 2 R K
BB FBRA - NERERE A ERFH
(BRZEREF) THEE - MERRBBZTYE
FEREEREREE - AFREREERRBR
BERIRE -

R R AR 2 B ATA B 1 HE R E AR
EAZEETG SRR RE BN ER AR
AR TR % B E MR (RIE EPRSFIRFE
B3Z7A B MEREIE 2 Z 8T E) IR B R R
FEFAAGRBRER °

SRMTE
EEBEEBKATIAESNKEIN—FK - MEE
EXMBAESTREEEEBERLER - UK
BEMVBABVZEUATFEEGNE - EES
BRBEERRTVBEERVKEE(RATE
Bt \BR2UBEERVBABRIIN 2R H
B EVRERREE T ARINESYIEE
EXMBABIATEE EEEBREERA
TEEFABZZVBEEINBEBEIRFGE
- ZAEBERER o

HMBEE

AEEHBEETER AMBEENZ — B
ERREARBEAR AR ENBEE - LR
MISAEMRANZ S BRFFIOT -



BEMBREEBRAE —E2NFFR

For the Year Ended 30 June 2009 #HZE=ZEZENFAF=1HIFE

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets

with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, deposits, bank balances and cash) are carried

at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less

any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as any of the other
categories.

For available-for-sale debt investments with guaranteed

return, payments receivables each year for investments are
apportioned between income and reduction of the carrying
value of the investments so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
fair value.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been impacted.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

* significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

* itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments and an increase in the number of delayed
payments.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in income statement when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
income statement to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the recognition of the impairment loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a

group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, bank
and other borrowings and bank overdrafts, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible bond

The convertible bond issued by the Group includes a liability
component, a conversion option, a call and put option and an
extension option. Convertible bond that will not be settled by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments are financial liabilities
with embedded derivatives. Derivatives embedded in a financial
instrument are treated as separate derivatives when their
economic risks and characteristics are not closely related to
those of the host contract (the liability component) and the host
contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss.

The convertible bond (including the liability component, the
conversion option, the call and put option and an extension
option) as a whole are designated as financial liabilities at

fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. At each
subsequent balance sheet date, the entire convertible bond will
be measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the
convertible bond designated as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire, or the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and control of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate is
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using

the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity
of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.
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Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from the profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years, and it further excludes income statement items that are
never taxable and deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for

all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected

to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated
income statement, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
dealt with in equity.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
as a separate component of equity (the translation reserve).
Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are charged as expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to contributions.

For the Group’s defined benefit retirement benefit schemes,
the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuation being carried out

at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses which
exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of the Group’s
pension obligations and the fair value of scheme assets are
amortised over the expected average remaining working lives
of the participating employees. Past service cost is recognised
immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested,
and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the amended benefits become vested.
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Retirement benefit cost (Continued)

The amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation
as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and
unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair
value of scheme assets.

Any assets resulting from this calculation is limited to
unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost, plus the
present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contribution to the scheme.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order

to calculate the present value where the actual future cash

flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at both balance sheet dates, the carrying amount of
goodwill was HK$36,795,000. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 17.

Development costs for systems and networks

(1) Estimated useful life
As at 30 June 2009, the carrying value of development costs
for systems and networks amount to HK$3,138,721,000
(2008: HK$2,743,823,000). The estimated useful life of the
assets reflects the directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the development where the actual useful life is less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

(2) Estimated impairment
Determining whether development costs for systems and
networks are impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flow expected to arise from the
continuing use of the assets and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 30 June 2009, the carrying amounts
of development costs for systems and networks was
HK$3,138,721,000 (2008: HK$2,743,823,000).
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Estimated impairment of deposits and prepaid
development costs

Determining whether deposits and prepaid development
costs are impaired requires an estimation of reliability of the
counter-party on completing the underlying projects where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June 2009, the carrying
amount of deposits and prepaid development costs was
HK$2,933,357,000 (2008: HK$2,563,105,000).

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale
investments

Determining whether available-for-sale investments are impaired
requires an estimation of future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return of similar assets and the assessment
of the ability for repayment by the investees where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 30 June 2009, the carrying amount of
available-for-sale investments was HK$1,088,980,000 (2008:
HK$1,509,822,000).
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Categories of financial instruments SRITACES
2009 2008
—EThEF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
Financial assets HMISEE
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 1,088,980 1,509,822
Loans and receivables B R FEARTK
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BIERERIRESERE) 1,352,024 1,082,728
2,441,004 2,592,550
Financial liabilities MisaRE
Amortised cost B 2 AR 374,969 527,694
Financial liabilities at fair value AT EEFTAEBRZZ
through profit or loss B afE
— Convertible bond — AR ES 136,461 -

511,430 527,694




For the Year Ended 30 June 2009 #iZ.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, trade and other receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, bank and other borrowings,
bank overdrafts and convertible bond. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that
the counterparties fail to perform their obligations at 30 June
2009 in relation to financial assets is the carrying amounts of
those assets stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

In addition, the Group is exposed to credit risk on its deposits
and prepaid development costs paid to developers, in the event
that these developers fail to perform their obligations to develop
the technologies as required. The maximum exposure to credit
risk in this regard, is the carrying amount of the deposits and
prepaid development costs as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade
receivables, the management of the Group will only allow
customers with good credit history to pay on credit. In addition,
the management reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at each balance sheet date, taking into account
the future discounted cash flows, to ensure that adequate
impairment provision are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on trade receivables is concentrated on a few
distributors. Receivables from top five distributors represented
approximately 84.9% (2008: 88.6%) of trade receivables at the
balance sheet date. In addition, the credit risk on guaranteed
distribution receivable is also concentrated on a few number
of guarantors of investments. Receivables from the top five
guarantors of investments represented approximately 30.0%
(2008: 22.1%) of guaranteed distribution receivables at the
balance sheet date. The management considers that there are
no significant credit risks due to the long and good credit history
of these debtors.

As at 30 June 2008, the Group maintains approximately
HK$71,409,000 (2009: nil) of deposits with certain overseas
financial institutions. The management considers there are no
significant credit risks due to the long and good credit history
with these financial institutions. The credit risk on other liquid
funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors

and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn

up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required

to pay.

MSERERE B ERBK (&)

TREE /AR

NRBESRREENS  ARELURE RS
FRETEEMEFEEEERR/ITHZKF
LMERAREBEEWRER S RRE IR ZF

@,
=

TRANARESRAEZRBANFY - JIR
THEAREERE AR ERER B RERER
REMRIIR

Weighted Total Carrying
average 0-6 7-12 Over undiscounted amount at
interest rate months months 1 year cash flow 30 June 2009
AEE R-BERhE
g Bek  A~A=1A
FigRIE 0Z6f8 A 7£12f8R 15EUL ot ZEHE
% HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TR TiEn TiEn TiEn

2009 “EBNE
Trade and other payables ERESREMER N/A FER 121,576 - - 121,576 121,576
Bank borrowings FITEE 2.6 177,320 2,147 38,165 217,632 215,069
Other borrowings Hinfg & 9.0 184 - - 184 176
Bank overdrafts RITEX 43 38,152 - - 38,152 38,148
Convertible bond (Note) AR ER (i) 1.0 682 - 137,825 138,507 136,461
337,914 2,147 175,990 516,051 511,430
Weighted Total Carrying
average 0-6 7-12 Over  undiscounted amount at
interest rate months months 1 year cash flow 30 June 2008
AR RIEEINE
il Rew  ~A=1AH
FA9FI% 0Z618A 7212(8R 3 28 ZEHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiEn TiEn TR TR

2008 —ZTNF
Trade and other payables JERE 5 RE RN N/A R iE 248,931 - - 248,931 248,931
Bank borrowings RIEE 28 201,510 3,302 57,758 262,570 250,265
Other borrowings Hifg & 9.0 523 14 205 742 682
Bank overdrafts BITER 57 27,819 - - 27,819 27,816
478,783 3316 57,963 540,062 527,694

Note:  The maturity analysis for the convertible bond has been

prepared on the assumption that it will not be early redeemed,
converted or purchased and cancelled before maturity date.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to

variable-rate bank borrowings and bank deposits. The Group

currently does not have a policy on cash flow hedges of interest
rate risk. However, the management monitors interest rate

exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate risk
should the need arises.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank borrowings
only, as management considers interest rates on bank balances
are not subject to significant fluctuations in interest rates.

The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of balances
outstanding at the balance sheet date was the amount
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year ended 30 June 2009 would decrease or increase by
approximately HK$1,057,000 (2008: decrease or increase by
approximately HK$1,161,000).

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in foreign
currency exchange rate which will affect the Group’s financial
results and its cash flows. Certain trade receivables and
deposits and bank balances of the Group are denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities (including
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intra-group current accounts) at the reporting date are as ZEREENAT ¢
follows:
2009 2008
—EEhEF —EENF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE afE BE afE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHT FAT
Euro BT 2,970 743 5,381 167
Hong Kong dollar BT 117,686 - 198,377 -
Pound Sterling EeE 436 - 325 -
Macao Pataca SRPYHE 603 - 436 67
United States dollar Ein 594 3,559 48,182 20,172
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not engage in any foreign currency
hedging instruments. It is the Group’s policy to manage foreign
exchange risk through matching foreign currency income

with expense, and where exposure to foreign exchange is
anticipated, appropriate hedging instruments will be used.

Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency

risk from Euro and United States dollar. Under the pegged
exchange rate system, the financial exposure on exchange rate
fluctuation between Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar
is considered insignificant by the directors and therefore no
sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in Euro against each group entity’s
functional currency. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation

at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
where Euro strengthens by 5% against each group entity’s
functional currency. For a 5% weakening of Euro against each
group entity’s functional currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit.
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2009 2008

—BeNE —BENE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

Euro BR T 111 261

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Price risk

Convertible bond

The Group is exposed to equity price risk on the convertible
bond (see note 29). The management manages this exposure
by providing measures in the subscription agreement to

allow redemption of the convertible bond at the option of the
Company, see note 29 for details.

ERERAFHAZINERBILERRERNZE
B MEHBEIMTIREEFINERR °

BT /E 5%

AR ES

AEEEETRRES ZBRHEBRR(RHE
29) - BEEENRABHERIRBEEEELR
B AT AARIEREETEOABRES 715
R EE29 ©
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Price risk (Continued)

Convertible bond (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the balance sheet date. If the
share price of the Company had been 5% higher, profit for the
year ended 30 June 2009 would decrease by HK$7,000 (2008:
nil) as a result of the changes in fair value of convertible bond.
Conversely, if the share price of the Company had been 5%
lower, profit for the year ended 30 June 2009 would increase by
HK$18,000 (2008: nil) as a result of the changes in fair value of
convertible bond.

Also, if the discount rate adopted in convertible bond valuation
had been 3% higher, the profit for the year ended 30 June 2009
would increase by HK$3,590,000 (2008: nil) as a result of the
changes in fair value of convertible bond.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined as follows:

* the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis; and

* for options embedded in the convertible bond issued by the
Group as set out in note 29, the fair value is estimated using
the Binomial Model.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold and services provided by the Group to outside
customers, licensing fees received and receivable and
distributions/ dividends received and receivable from the
Group’s investments in telecommunications and e-commerce
projects and strategic investments during the year.

(a) Turnover
The turnover of the Group comprises the following:

BEMBREEBRAE —E2NFFR

ENFAA=THIEFE

SRR ERE B ER K (F)

B E s ()

AR E S ()

BRETHT
DAT@Z@?EMEMEEW%::E#EZH%N‘W
RBBmEL o WARRMRELEFA5% @ BlFEHE=
Tni/\ﬂﬂraﬁirg‘z;ﬁﬁuﬁ%EH;&H&%%%
Z AT EEEEMRL7,008T(ZTTN\EF -
E) AR MARRIRET®S% - AEEZT
THERNA=ZTHLEFEZHFEATBERES 2
NFEEZEH M N18,00087T( Z T )\F
) o

BEAN - AT R E A G EMRB 2T EAS
3% BHE_ZTHENA=TRILFE ZHFMNE
g H R ES 2 A FEEZ EmE 3,590,000
BT ZTTN\E . &) -

BBEERMKEEZATER

MHEERMBAR AT EERA T AE
T

- UBAERMBEAE(TEED I\)Z
FEERBRRARAS RO E EER
BE &

o BRAKEMRBTESEERENZIBEES
(FBERMF29) - EATEEL - EABE
FEEEAEH A -

EEZRRARENG P BMEACBHZRA
Stk B AERABZ REERE A FEER
2o

EEBEFALAEERAIIABTHEER LT
IR 2 B R BRI - SRR R
HEA URREAEEREEREFHEIEE
ZIRERRBEIEIRE 2 BEWRER DR, BR -

(a) 8%
REB 7 EEFRE THIEIE :

2009 2008

—EEAEF —TTN\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Sales of systems products HERBEm 1,753,739 2,287,033
Rendering of services and TRHLARTS B BRI AT

software licensing 1,042,987 1,167,512

Leasing of systems products ERXFER 21,193 10,158

Guaranteed distribution income aﬁ%/ﬁuﬂz)\ 70,024 114,556

Dividend income BUA 35,160 55,790

2,923,103 3,635,049
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(b) Business segments
For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into five (2008: six) main operating businesses
— sales of general systems products, provision of services
(including software customisation and provision of e-lottery
services) and software licensing, leasing of systems
products, investments in telecommunications networks and
projects, investments in e-commerce projects and holding
strategic investments in advanced technology product
development companies. These businesses are the basis

(b) £H 2%

on which the Group reports its primary segment information.

RABER AEEZEBRAAARA(ZE
TN\F R TEEEEB - HERER
Em - RERE (EERFTRIEREFY
ERB) REMETE  HERGER  BE
BERBABZIRE BYHEHEAZKE -
AR R ERIRERMEARFA I RBIR
B WEXBDARETIEDBERZRE

Sales of Provision of Investments
general services and Leasing in
systems software  of systems e-commerce Strategic
products licensing products projects investments Consolidated
HE-R  REBBR HERS EFHE
AhERm  BiHTE Em EEZRE  REMMRE #e
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T TER FHT FEx TERL
Year ended 30 June 2009 BE-ZENE
AAZTHLEE
TURNOVER BEE
External and total revenue HIMEE R 1,753,739 1,042,987 21,193 787 104,397 2,923,103
RESULTS #
Segment result DELE 60,893 65,847 2,605 746 (19,246) 110,845
Interest income FSMA 5,199
Discount on acquisition of WEmBAR
additional interest in subsidiaries BHMER 2 62,326
Loss on deemed disposal of HRALENBLR
a subsidiary d | (51,839)
Unallocated corporate expenses, FARARFZ
net -8 (13,308)
Finance costs B A (8,943)
Profit before taxation eyl 104,280
Taxation HE (1,062)
Profit for the year REERR

103,218
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(b) Business segments (Continued) (b) D% &)
Sales of  Provision of Investments
general services and Leasing in

systems software  of systems e-commerce Strategic

products licensing products projects investments Consolidated

HE-R  REBER HEZA ETHE

ZRER  BfhAE ER EEZRE  HRRMERE B5a

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TiEn TET TER T

As at 30 June 2009 RZBENE
~A=tA

ASSETS BB
Segment assets PREE 4,745,364 2,463,852 3,819 5,600 1,320,064 8,538,699
Unallocated corporate assets FAARDAEE 332,467
Consolidated total assets DABEE 8,871,166
LIABILITIES =
Segment liabiltties HEEE 77,813 89,726 6,888 - - 174,427
Unallocated corporate liabiliies FAARBAAE 414,934
Consolidated total liabilities RABEE 589,361
OTHER INFORMATION HiER
Capital additions of property, VER R

plant and equipment LEREN 5,277 5,900 470 - - 11,647
Capital additions of systems Z R

and networks ZBREN 167,310 - - - - 167,310
Additions of deposits and ReRBARENA

prepaid development costs 25 1,351,272 - - - - 1,351,272
Depreciation and amortisation FERBE 364,039 524,504 298 - - 888,841
Impairment losses recognised for RAREERE

available-for-sale investments PR REEE - - - - 104,197 104,197
Impairment losses recognised for REGREEL

development costs for systems FERARH®RL

and networks HEEBR 164,580 - - - - 164,580
Impairment losses recognised ke REMNFEE

for deposits and prepaid RAFHER R

development costs B8 40,560 - - - - 40,560
Gain on disposal of property, LENE  BERRE

plant and equipment pdc: (14) (18) @) = = (34)
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(b) Business segments (Continued) (b) D% &)
Investments

Sales of Provision of in tele- Investments

general  services and Leasing - communications in

systems software of systems networks  e-commerce Strategic

products licensing products  and projects projects investments  Consolidated
HER RURBR HEZG ERBER E7HE

FoEm FitTE Em REZRE FEZRE REERE e

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
T TEL T T FET T T

Year ended 30 June 2008 BECITINE
AAZTRLEFRE

TURNOVER g1y
External and total revenue HMEERBMA 2287033 1,167,512 10,158 16,033 7,846 146,467 3,635,049
RESULTS ES |
Segment result NEEE 71,767 131,741 4,993 2940 6,663 70,244 288,348
Interest income HEWA 8,517
(Gain on deemed disposal of HRALENBAR

subsidiaries bl 196
Discount on deemed acquisition of HRARENBAR

additional interest in a subsidiary BRI 2860
Loss on fair value change of ARESATER

convertible bonds 2EER (2282)
Unallocated corporate expenses, RARRARR

net - B8 (33,640)
Finance costs BIIA (6,781)
Profit before taxation BEART 257218
Taxation WE (2,063)

Profitfor the year REFET 255215
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(b) D% &)

Investments
Sales of Provision of in tele- Investments
general  senvices and Leasing - communications in
systems soffware of systems networks  e-commerce Strategic
products licensing products  and projects projects investments  Consolidated
HER RARBR BEZG BRRER 7HE
oER qitkTE Em REZRE BEZRE REERE &R
HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Tin TEL Fin Fhn T Fin Fhn
As at 30 June 2008 RZEENE
AA=TH
ASSETS &g
Segment assets NBEE 4,905,516 1,339,190 6,731 47468 53733 1,731,963 8,084,601
Unallocated corporate assets AOMAREE 361,558
Consolidated total assets GalEE 8,446,159
LIABILITIES 8
Segment liabiliies HEER 131510 185,185 7,981 = = = 324,676
Unallocated corporate liabilties AOMARAE 305,878
Consolidated total iabilties Falak 630554
(OTHER INFORMATION EftER
Capital adaltions of property, % BERAE
plant and equipment pa-73:0) 4498 4108 06 - - - 8910
Capital addtions of systems ZRREG
and nefworks ZEREN 319,800 - - - - - 319,800
Additions of deposits and BERBARE
prepaid development costs M2 2,052,804 - - - - - 2,052,804
Depreciation and amorisation HEREH 274171 453,260 439 - - - 721870
Impairment losses recognised for HARLERE
avallable-for-sale investments figa HERE = = = = = 56,502 56,502
Impairment losses recognised for HEGRAE 2 RS
development costs for systems HARHER
and networks LREER 165,565 210923 - - - - 436,488
Impairment losses recognised HRERENRE
for deposits and prepaid RAFHER
development costs LREER 99,560 145,750 - - - - 245310
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(c) Geographical segments

EENFAA=ZFHILFE

(i) The following table provides an analysis of the
Group's revenue by geographical market, by location
of customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods/

services:

(c) HESHE

() TREBHIAREEZIETI5E S 2 WA

(REPRESD)H

2RI -

Revenue by
geographical segment

DT (R

e IR

Year ended 30 June
BB EE D ZWA
BEAA=THLEEE

2009 2008
—=EnE —TT)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
People’s Republic of China i AR AME

(the “PRC") including (TFREg]) -

Hong Kong and Macau BIEEAKRFP 2,251,399 2,783,225
Europe BM 474,990 597,404
Other Hph 196,714 254,420

2,923,103 3,635,049

(i) The following is an analysis of the carrying amount
of segment assets, and capital additions to property,
plant and equipment, systems and networks, interest in
e-commerce projects and telecommunications projects
and strategic investments in advanced technology
product development companies, analysed by the
geographical market to which the assets are located:

(i) TR AEBZEEMTETHE
AHEEEZEEESN - URERE
MREYE  BERR
% ETRHEBEEREEEE 2EX
URkFERRHREMRBE AR 2RI
BE)Z A

Carrying amount
of segment assets

Capital additions

PEEEZREE BEAIE
30.6.2009 30.6.2008 30.6.2009 30.6.2008
—EZAEF —EENF —EBNF —TENF
ANB=1H ~NA=+AH NA=+H ~NA=+A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT TERT FHT

The PRC including RE - B

Hong Kong and Macau Epeds 8,366,201 7,820,448 1,518,994 2 374,892
Europe B 124,592 135,939 9,635 6,520
Other Hph 47,906 128,214 1,600 102
8,538,699 8,084,601 1,530,229 2,381,514
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Included in other income are interest earned on bank deposits
and balances of HK$5,199,000 (2008: HK$8,577,000) and
exchange gain of HK$4,434,000 (2008: HK$19,811,000).

During the year, Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”), a
listed subsidiary of the Company, proposed a rights issue of
1,014,761,471 rights shares at the subscription price of HK$0.1
per rights share on the basis of one rights share for every

four existing shares of Kantone (“Kantone’s Rights Issue”).
The Company agreed to underwrite 500,253,388 shares at an
underwriting commission of 2.5% of the total subscription price
of the underwritten shares. As a result of Kantone's Rights
Issue, the Company acquired an additional 647,613,442 shares
of Kantone for a total subscription price of HK$64,761,000,
resulting in a discount on acquisition of additional interest in
Kantone of HK$56,377,000.

The Group also received dividend income from Kantone

in forms of shares of Kantone. A total of 63,280,664 (2008:
97,932,762) shares of Kantone were received, resulting in a
discount on deemed acquisition of additional interest in Kantone
of HK$5,380,000 (2008: HK$2,860,000). Also, during the year,
Kantone acquired additional interest in a subsidiary which has
resulted in a discount on acquisition of HK$569,000.

As a result of the above transactions, the Group recognised
an aggregate discount on additional interest in subsidiaries of
HK$62,326,000 (2008: HK$2,860,000).

During the year, Kantone acquired a subsidiary, Good Holdings
Limited (“Good Holdings”) (see note 33 for further details),

for a consideration of HK$328,600,000 which was satisfied

by the issue of 620,000,000 shares of Kantone. As a result of
the foregoing, the Group has recognised a deemed loss on
disposal of interest in Kantone of HK$51,848,000. The deemed
loss on disposal was partially offset by gain on deemed disposal
of Kantone of HK$9,000 (2008: HK$196,000) as a result of the
exercise of warrants by warrantholders of Kantone during the
year.

HMRABRBERITFERARETFAKRRZFE
5,199,000 7C (=T Z A\ : 8,577,000 T) -
LA B B 5, W 25 4,434000 8 0 ( Z T T )\ 4 -
19,811,000/ 7T) °

FR AR LTHBRAREREBABRAR
(TEBB)ESEENREEERRNERE —K
RN 2 EEAGRERBMDOAB T ZRE
B 171,014,761 471 IR ELAR A& 15 ([ & W
Bl) o ARRIRERBIERG EREE25% 26
S5 % ©2$5500,253,388 AL 1D - AR EITE B
A% - AR B REE(E64,761,00078 TN EE
647,613,442 F @R - B MG IS F mEEIN
%52 $T4156,377,000/8 7T °

RNEE TR AKECE B G B F B URERL IR
A o ARREWENA ££63,280,664 1% ( ZZ T\
F 1 97,932,762/%) R - AMESHARE A
BEBEIMER 2 ¥T115,380,0008 T (ZZFEN
£ 12,860,000 7T) © AN - B FRUE—
Rk B A Rl EEIMER - Bk U ET1569,000
BIT ©

RRETERR S » AEBMBERKRBEHB AR
SN IR HT N 48 5862,326,0008 L ( — T T )\ F -
2,860,000 7T ) °

FR - FBEWE— BB 2B Good Holdings
Limited([ Good Holdings]) (Ff& RKTEE33) » £
{8 /328,600,000 7T + i 8 %17 620,000,000 A%
BBRMHZA o RETT B - AEERER
WAL E S BTS2 EE51,848,000/87T © F
A HREBRRIEZTEFE ATELRBRERE -
HERALEZEBERERISSEHWRALE
B2 9,000 (ZTZE/\F 196,000
TC) BT SH o

2009 2008
—EBNF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHT

Interest on bank and other borrowings ARAFRBEEEZRITR
wholly repayable within five years HinfgE 2 FS 7,615 6,781
Interest expense on convertible bond AR ESR 2 FEFRX 1,328 -

8,943 6,781
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2009 2008
—EBhE —TTN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Profit before taxation has been arrived BREBIRIEFE R -
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (Note (i) EE2M < (FIEEG) 7,814 8,006
Staff costs excluding directors’ BIKA(TEEEEMHE)
remuneration 107,281 116,035
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R KIEFIEFZIE R (EEB M)
other than directors’ (Note (ii)) (P sEGi)) 6,508 7,269
Total staff costs AN FN L 121,603 131,310
Amortisation on: PATT & T8 2 #8H
Development costs for systems and R R A 2 RE KR
networks, included in direct (GEABEEEEKA)
operating expenses 876,905 713,070
Intangible assets, included in general mEE
and administrative expenses (FEA—RRITH ) 2,360 2,360
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERREITE
equipment, included in general and (FrA—MRRATHZ H)
administrative expenses 9,576 12,440
Total depreciation and amortisation iR Y5E: Fihct 888,841 727,870
Auditor’s remuneration BRI & 6,143 5,740
Cost of inventories recognised BEERTEZRA 1,384,123 1,595,673
Impairment loss recognised for property, Y - BREREE
plant and equipment FrigER 2 BEEE = 5,085
Minimum lease payments paid under RBEEHEE Y
operating leases in respect of: RIEESNRERE
Rented premises HEME 7,156 6,774
Machinery and equipment 28 R A 1,389 5,010
Research and development cost B 3% $HiA g B B
expensed AR 6,445 10,242
and after crediting: REFA :
Net foreign exchange gain B 5 e S 3,501 19,811
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEREREZ
plant and equipment & 34 164
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Notes:
(i) Information regarding directors’ and employees’ emoluments
Year ended 30 June 2009

BifaE -
() ERESEEEHES2ER
BE-ZTAFAA=ZTHLEE

Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments  contributions emoluments
ek BIERR RIER EZMe
ne HifEH BH2Ee BE 34 o]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT
(Note)
(F3E)
Executive directors YrES
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok * [ERETd
- the Company VNG| - 1,939 146 12 2,097
- Kantone - - 57 - 2 59
- DIGITALHONGKONG.COM —HEES
(‘Digital HK’) (IgBEE]) - 114 = 6 120
S 2,110 146 20 2,276
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung * BRR I
- the Company —RAR] - 1,152 699 12 1,863
- Kantone ~E&R 5 20 - - 25
- Digital HK —HI5EA 10 18 - - 28
15 1,190 699 12 1,916
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong * REAEE
~ the Company VNG - 756 650 12 1,418
- Kantone - - 57 - 3 60
- Digital HK —YEES 10 18 - - 28
10 831 650 15 1,506
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight * Francis Gilbert Knight4t 4 +
- the Company —RAR] 50 50 - - 100
- Digital HK -HBES 30 50 = - 80
80 100 - - 180
Prof. Liang Xiong Jian # Rl
- the Company —RAR] 20 21 - - 4
- Kantone -E8 50 50 - - 100
70 71 - - 141
Prof. Ye Pei Da * 32yt
- the Company —RAR] 50 50 - - 100
- Kantone —ER 21 20 - - 4
71 70 - - 141
Mr. Frank Bleackley # Frank Bleackley 4t 4#
- the Company —RAR] 50 50 - - 100
- Kantone -E8 50 50 - - 100
100 100 - - 200
Mr. Terry John Miller HELAE 50 207 - - 257
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling * Bt
~ the Company . YAC 5 15 - - 20
- Kantone —ER 5 15 - - 20
- Digital HK -HBEE = 780 365 12 1,157
10 810 365 12 1,197
406 5,489 1,860 59 7,814
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Notes: (Continued)

(i) Information regarding directors’ and employees’ emoluments

Bt : (%)

() EHESREEMSZEN @)

(Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2008 HE_TZT \FRA=THILFE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
HER BIERA RNER E2he
e HiigF B fe BE55A Fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FET TAET
(Note)
(W3E)
Executive directors YTES
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok * e Tt
- the Company YN - 1,939 162 12 2,113
- Kantone Rt - 57 - 2 59
- Digital HK -YHEE - 114 - 6 120
= 2,110 162 20 2,292
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung * R S
- the Company . YN - 1,147 750 12 1,909
- Kantone -t ] 5) 20 - - 25
- Digital HK -HEES 10 18 - - 28
15 1,185 750 12 1,962
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong * RENEE"
- the Company YN - 756 661 12 1,429
- Kantone -E@ - 57 - 3 60
- Digital HK —YEES 10 18 = = 28
10 831 661 15 1,517
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight * Francis Gilbert Knight /£ 4+
- the Company YN 50 50 - - 100
- Digital HK -YHEE 30 50 = - 80
80 100 - - 180
Prof. Liang Xiong Jian # RiRAR
- the Company . YN 50 50 - - 100
- Kantone - 50 50 - - 100
100 100 - - 200
Prof. Ye Pei Da # ERERHB
- the Company . YN 50 50 - - 100
- Kantone - 50 50 - - 100
100 100 - - 200
Mr. Frank Bleackley # Frank Bleackley % 4£#
- the Company . YN 50 50 - - 100
- Kantone - 50 50 - - 100
100 100 - - 200
Mr. Terry John Miller [ vk 50 207 - - 257
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling * B L
- the Company YN 5 15 - - 20
- Kantone ~Ef 5 15 - - 20
- Digital HK -YHEE - 744 402 12 1,158
10 774 402 12 1,198
465 5,507 1,975 59 8,006
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Information regarding directors’ and employees’ emoluments
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(Continued)
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*  The director is also a director of Kantone and Digital HK, both of
which are listed subsidiaries of the Company.

#  The director is also a director of Kantone.

The director is also a director of Digital HK.

The remuneration for non-executive directors comprises directors’
fees and other emoluments which vary with the number of

committees on which they serve.

Note:  The performance related incentive payment is discretionary
as may be decided by the board of directors provided
that the total amount of bonus payable to all members
of the board of directors for such year shall not exceed
eight percent of the consolidated profit after taxation of the

Group.

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two (2008:
two) directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are set
out above. The aggregate emoluments of the remaining three (2008:
three) highest paid employees of the Group, not being directors of

the Company, are as follows:

MieE : (%)
() EHE=HEEESMe2ER )

© BEEAEBRUEESZES - MHAT
BRRARZ ETHBAR -

*OREFETRBEREZES -
T REETABBEECEF

FRTESHEFETREREMHE - RF
BEHEZZEGHEMERTRE -

Bt BRIERBEFMZREBRBEEELTH
EFERT ERZFEENSEFER
B2 B BBETSBRBAEERTIZGS
8% ©

=]

AEBREBRSFALEERE(ZETNF W
F)ARNBESE - A S FERN L3 - AEBEHLR
=R (ZFTN\F  ZR)ESFAL(LIRRFZ

2009 2008

ZEBAF —TTNFE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Salaries and other benefits HeREMER 4,192 4,872
Performance related incentive payments BRIERBERZ 828 325 113
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RORAE ARG BIGER 499 495
5,016 5,480

Emoluments of these employees were within the following bands:

EEB Z e F THEE

Number of employee(s)

EEAR
2009 2008
e aihia —TTN\F
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T 3 3
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Notes: (Continued)
(ii) Retirement benefit scheme contributions

WisE - (42)
(i) EURERIGH B

2009 2008
—EENEF —TT)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FaxT FHET
Retirement benefit scheme contributions MAEE 2 ERER B A2
to the Group’s defined contribution RRIER T EI L3R
scheme 994 947
Retirement benefit scheme contributions MAEE 2 ERREFF Sz
to the Group’s defined benefit scheme IRRRBHIET SR 5,573 6,381
6,567 7,328

Defined contribution scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company participate in a retirement
benefit scheme covering a portion of their employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged to the
consolidated income statement represent contributions payable to
the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.
Where there are employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contribution payable by the Group is
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At the balance sheet date, there were no forfeited contributions
which arose upon employees leaving the scheme and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable in the future years
(2008: nil).

Commencing from December 2000, the Group enrolled all eligible
employees in Hong Kong into a mandatory provident fund (the
“MPF”) scheme. The retirement benefit cost of the MPF scheme
charged to the consolidated income statement represents
contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the MPF scheme.

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a self-administered,
funded pension scheme. The scheme provides defined pension
benefits related to service, and final earnings and capital sums on
death. Membership is optional for all staff paid monthly and aged
over 21 years.

The contributions which are determined by a qualified actuary on the
basis of triennial valuations using the projected unit credit method
are charged to the consolidated income statement. Under the
scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension between 1.67%
and 2.50% of final salary for each year of pensionable service at an
age of 65. No other post-retirement benefits are provided. The most
recent actuarial valuations of scheme assets and the present value
of the defined benefit obligations were carried out at 31 December
2008 by Ms. Alison Bostock, Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries,
and were updated to 30 June 2009 for the accounting reporting
purpose. The assumptions which have the most significant effect
on the results of the valuation are those relating to the rate of return
on investments and the rates of increase in salaries, pensions and
share dividends.

ERHKE R

KRB TETHBRAR RSB EESE—FRIK
G Bl o R Bl 2 AEEAKE 2 BEDFR
B UFREBLREARRZEEA -

BiRE BERNG ZRRETF SRR D AERR
FERAIZ BT RRNBHES ZHK - HER
REBRENEMBHPRZ AR E - AEEZE
PR E BRI HEK -

WESEH - I8 FES R8I fEE 2R
HABAHBARREZE ZEBAEK(ZFRNE
&) -

—ERTRFEA+ AR ARBRERBEZME
BAREREEMELZSEREAES ([BES )
FHE o ARG EBARING ZBEEH BRKENE
REAKBEZEES TR EELRRRES
FHEIfEH Z#5K -

EREEAEE

ARFBTETHBRARRLI—BBETERZENK
BAEE o DiE BN REEHERREBEZE
BERAET - BB FRE &k ha RENE - &
BAFRFR2ARZABRIAMEES N MG

& -

RIEE B EEM S = FRTE B BRI
EEEZHR - IRGABERPIR - RIEZ:T
£ BE—RNFIESHENRTFRHUAERKS
ZRBEBN T REF S 21.67%%250% 2 B IR
© o NEEWERHEEARKEER o RL 2 E
BEREGERTEEMNARRANR-_ZETNE
+ZR=+—HBBEESEEERKSAlison Bostock
ZEi#IT  WERZZTAESA=Z+HAEHUE
ETEIHESE  WEELERSAYEZRED
BARERRERF S  RIKSERE 2 FHE -



BEMBREEBRAE —E2NFFR

For the Year Ended 30 June 2009 #HZE=ZEZENFAF=1HILFE

Notes: (Continued)

(if) Retirement benefit scheme contributions (Continued)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued)
The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

MieE : (48)
(i) EBAKERGEHRE)

EREF B2
Az EEEEBRLOT

30.6.2009 30.6.2008
—EENEF —TTN\F
ANA=t+H ~A=+H
Discount rate ik 6.40% 6.60%
Expected return on scheme assets TEHRZ &I A E B R 7.00% 7.50%
Expected rate of salary increase BH 2 HETE 3.50% 3.80%
Future pension increases RIRZRIKE TR 3.50% 3.80%

The actuarial valuation updated to 30 June 2009 showed that the
market value of the scheme assets was HK$210,234,000 (2008:
HK$261,287,000) and that the actuarial value of these assets
represented 69% (2008: 75%) of the benefits that had accrued to
members.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement in
respect of the defined benefit pension scheme are as follows:

BHEZTTAFANA=-TBEZRBEGERR
FTEIEE 2 T {E £210,234,0008 T (ZTT )\ F -
261,287,000 ) * MEZEEEZEEBEREE
FEBRBFIZ69%( =TT /)\F : 75%) °

BhE R ARG BN R A B R T RER Z S E LD
T

2009 2008

—2ENEF —TTNFE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current service cost RITRRIEK A 3,085 3,449
Interest on obligation AEZ B 18,423 20,489
Expected return on plan assets HEIEE 2 FEHE 3R (15,935) (17,557)
5,573 6,381

The charge for the year has been included in cost of sales. REFZHE A AHEKR ©

The amount included in the consolidated balance sheet arising from
the Group’s obligations in respect of its defined benefit pension
scheme is as follows:

AAKE EREFRAKGBAEMEE 2 SHC
FRAGABRERMESR BT

2009 2008

—EThE —ETN\EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

Fair value of scheme assets FEEEZ ATHEE 210,234 261,287
Present value of funded obligations AEREZRE (303,635) (346,394)
Net unrecognised actuarial loss (gain) REER 2 FEE A8 (Ues ) F 48 22,112 (7,176)

(71,289) (92,283)
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Notes: (Continued)
(ii) Retirement benefit scheme contributions (Continued)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are
as follows:

B ()

(i) EBAERGEHERE)
EREEATE(®)
EARRFRE ARSI T -

2009 2008

—EThEF —TENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

At beginning of the year F9) 346,394 353,421
Currency realignment [E H 358 (62,883) (4,879)
Service cost BRI A 3,085 3,449
Interest cost B A 18,423 20,489
Actuarial loss (gain) TEE BB () 11,059 (12,997)
Contributions T 1,409 2,054
Benefits paid FRNEE (13,852) (15,143)
At end of the year FhE 303,635 346,394

Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

HEEEZ ATRERHOT

2009 2008

ZEEBAF —ZTENF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At beginning of the year F9) 261,287 247,495
Currency realignment [ R (47,409) (3,640)
Expected return on plan assets B EZAHER 15,935 17,557
Actuarial (loss) gain TEE (E518) Was (16,964) 4,186
Contributions T 11,237 10,832
Benefits paid FRNEE (13,852) (15,143)
At end of the year FHE 210,234 261,287

The fair value of plan assets and the expected rate of return at the
balance sheet date is analysed as follows:

REER 2 BEE Y AT MIERESEREH T
mE

Expected return Fair value of plan assets
FAHE R SAEEECZAFER

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EERE —TTNF —EThEF —TENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity instruments RATA 7.40% 7.80% 184,165 233,991
Debt instruments (=i = 4.40% 4.80% 23,546 26,645
Other assets HiEE 0.50% 5.00% 2,523 651
210,234 261,287

The weighted average rate of return of assets held is 7.00% (2008:
7.50%). The overall expected rate of return is a weighted average of
the expected returns of the various categories of plan assets held.
The assumptions used in determining the overall expected return
of the scheme have been set with reference to yields available on
government bonds and appropriate risk margins.

The actual return on plan assets was HK$1,029,000 (2008:
HK$22,354,000).

LAIEF AR B 2 i AE 2 MK R7.00%(=
TENEF : 750%) - BERPEBEFHEZTR
BIEtBIEEE @R 2 TR - BEERE2
ERBEHLBMAER 2 BRRC2ERF RS RER
ZBEREE W

sHEIEE Y BB EHA1,029,0008 T (Z BT\
22,354,000/ 7T) °



Notes: (Continued)

(if) Retirement benefit scheme contributions (Continued)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued)
The history of the plan for the current and prior period is as follows:
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MieE : (48)

(i) EBAKERGEHRE)
EEEATE(E)
BEET BN AEAR B A HARS 2 AReR T

2009 2008 2007
—EENF —TENF —TTEF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
Present value of defined benefit EREMARE 2 BE
obligation 303,635 346,394 353,421
Fair value of plan assets FEIBEEZ ATHER (210,234) (261,287) (247,495)
Deficit 54t 93,401 85,107 105,926
Experience adjustments on EIREZBERE
plan liabilities 11,059 (12,997) (32,587)
Experience adjustments on FHEEEZAREAR
plan assets (16,964) 4,186 (13,387)
2009 2008
—EBNF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The charge comprises: HELZLEE
Current tax: RNEFEHIA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMEH - -
Other jurisdictions Hi ki@ 2 58 1,062 2,015
1,062 2,015
Under(over)provision in prior years: BEFERERT (HBF)
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFEH - 291
Other jurisdiction HAth Rl E 2 BiE = (173)
= 48
1,062 2,063

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits derived from Hong Kong. No
provision for taxation has been made as the Group’s income
neither arises in, nor is derived from Hong Kong. Taxation in
other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions.

The low effective tax rate is attributable to the fact that a
substantial portion of the Group’s profit neither arises in, nor

is derived from, Hong Kong and is accordingly not subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax and such profit is either exempt from or
not subject to taxation in any other jurisdictions.

EBFEBRIAREES 2 Gt ERBRF %
16.5%( T T \F : 16.5%) ZFHRHE - HRA
SEEZRABIERESHE - IMEFREEH -
WARVEEFRIBRME - HibRDE MR 2 BB TR (E

PIRLEIEE & B IRAZ R ERFE -

ERRERREZ RERREBAIDEMBEIER
FRRR - TIEREEE - WBABRBEENG
B MR N R RA SR D ER R R B A

BAMEMBIA
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Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 30.

REBIEERIAZ FHISBRHEE30 ©

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per

AEEZRAXNEGEERR 28N HRN

the consolidated income statement as follows: T
2009 2008
—EZhE ZZENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHIT
Profit before taxation A AT e A 104,280 257,278
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REBFIBBE16.5%1E 2
of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) HIE(ZZTZT)\F : 16.5%) 17,206 42,451
Tax effect of profit exempted or not PREM EE M @ R R ATk
subject to taxation in other jurisdictions BERB 2 mMz RGswE (22,573) (47,172)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR B B IRz A2
for tax purposes e 4,865 5,899
Tax effect of income not taxable AT B 2 WA Z
for tax purposes TSR e (6,216) (8,289)
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses BRABERERARESEZ
previously not recognised e e (481) (11)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FERTEBRBZRETE 8,111 9,058
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR = 48
Other =i} 150 79
Taxation for the year REF 2 A 1,062 2,063
2009 2008
—EBRE —TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Final dividend proposed in scrip form RUABRRBEFRIRBEEENER
equivalent to HK0.25 cents 0.25 Bl Z R R HARLE
(2008: HK0.25 cents) per share, ZEZT)N\F 025 B) -
with a cash option EER S 10,014 4,936
Interim dividend paid in scrip form RABRR BT NIREEER
equivalent to HK0.50 cents B 0.50 Al F HARR &
(2008: HK2.45 cents) per share, ZTT)\EF 245 FL) -
with a cash option EERS 9,954 41,360
Underprovision in prior year EFEERETR = 1,816
19,968 48,112

The proposed final dividend for 2009 is calculated on the basis
of 4,005,530,338 shares (2008: 1,974,500,267 shares) in issue

on 30 June 2009.

£ 1 1,974,500,2670% )5t E o

ZETAFERERARETIIE=ZETNFE A
=+ 8 2B #170%1%4,005,530,338f% (=T Z )\
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The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the following data:

EARREEETRAN TR THIBEE

2009 2008
—EEAE —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Earnings attributable to equity holders LRt ESREARRAF 2
of the Company for the purpose of RAFIRSBES A A
calculating basic earnings per share L &R 74,630 190,456
Effect of options attached to convertible —FEIf B A R AT AR E
bonds of a subsidiary Fbfi4ER) 2 & - (602)
Interest on convertible bond AR E TS 1,328 -
Earnings for the purpose of calculating NETEEBEGRAT 2
diluted earnings per share ZF 75,958 189,854
Number of shares (’000)
BREE (LT R
2009 2008
—EEAE ZTTN\F
Weighted average number of shares N EERERERFZ
for the purpose of calculating basic SRR
earnings per share 3,229,122 2,673,619
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: LA T ¥ & @& 2 B S -
Convertible bond R ES 177,481 -
Warrants RARREE = 47,613
Weighted average number of shares NEtE&KEEFR AT
for the purpose of calculating 2 DREFE I B An
diluted earnings per share 28 3,406,603 2,721,232

No diluted earnings per share is presented in respect of
warrants for the year ended 30 June 2009 as the exercise price
of the warrants was higher than the average market price of
shares of the Company.

The weighted average number of shares for the purpose of
calculating the basic earnings per share has been adjusted on
the assumption that the rights issue of the Company completed
in June 2009 on the basis of one rights share for every existing
issued share (see note 31(d)) had been effective on 1 July 2007.

BE_ZTAFRNA=THIEFEL B RIRE
FEE2DEHEEFIRBF - UL HRZARIEE
TEERRARRRMN 2 FIGWE -

ATEESREARBFZ MEFIRMHEE - HERE
ARARZZEENFEAAREFE—REREE
BT AT — AR AR AR 1D 2 (AR T8I ( R
E31(d) ER=ZZEZLF LA —HERMEL S

= o
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Plant and
machinery
and tele- Furniture
Landand communications and Motor
buildings networks fixtures vehicles Total
BEEME
THREF RERH#K BRREE RE by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT TAT TAT TER
COosT RAE
At1July 2007 RZZZ+ELA-R 63,149 1,014,586 15,700 9,631 1,103,066
Currency realignment EXBE (231) (1,997) - - (2,228)
Additions HE = 8,088 822 - 8910
Disposals e - (2,361) ) (2,354) (@721)
At 30 June 2008 RZZZNERA=TH 62,918 1,018,316 16,516 7277 1,105,027
Currency realignment EBE (4,149) (58,926) - - (63,075)
Additions nE 1,085 10,515 47 - 11,647
Disposals e (1,005) (647) (374) (57) (2,083)
At 30 June 2009 R=BEAEAAZTA 58,849 969,258 16,189 7,220 1,051,516
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARRMENT  frERHE
At1 July 2007 RZZZ2+ELA-R 24,444 986,842 15,576 9,020 1,035,882
Currency realignment BN AR (44) (2.401) - - (2,445)
Provided for the year FRERE 1,613 10,154 355 318 12,440
Impairment loss HEEE - 5,085 - - 5,085
Eliminated on disposals HERHR - (2,161) 6) (2,354) (4521)
At 30 June 2008 26,013 997,519 15,925 6,984 1,046,441
Currency realignment (1,108) (55,933) - - (57,041)
Provided for the year 1,743 7292 354 187 9,576
Eliminated on disposals (701) (525) (374) (57) (1,657)
At 30 June 2009 RZBBAERAZTH 25,947 948,353 15,905 7,114 997,319
CARRYING VALUES SREE
At 30 June 2009 R=BENEAA=TA 32,902 20,905 284 106 54,197
At 30 June 2008 RZZZNERA=TH 36,905 20,797 591 293 58,586
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2009 2008
—EBhE ZTT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
The carrying values of the Group’s REBE 2 MFERERREE
property interests comprise: BIE
Freehold properties held outside MBEBAIMEERET A Z KA
Hong Kong ESiL/ES 14,238 16,751
Leasehold properties: BRI
Held in Hong Kong REBRFA
- long leases —REIRL 13,050 13,363
— medium term leases — R EE2 Y 2,428 3,332
Held outside Hong Kong REBAIMBEREE
—long leases —RHEREA 243 302
— medium term leases — R HRRR LY 2,943 3,157
32,902 36,905

The Group leases equipment to customers on operating leases
terms. The carrying value of such equipment, which is included
in plant and machinery and telecommunications networks, is as
follows:

AEEREEHERFEAESRIMTERS - E5FA
RS B RS R B ERM A 2 B B 2 FREE#H
ST

2009 2008

—EEAE —ETNF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHERT FHT

Customer equipment at cost BN BRAE 81,126 99,110
Less: Accumulated depreciation B BEHTE (79,968) (97,696)
Carrying value BREE 1,158 1,414

At 30 June 2009, certain land and buildings of the Group with a
carrying value of HK$10,262,000 (2008: HK$12,636,000) were
pledged to a bank as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group.

In the prior year, the directors had determined that full
impairment amounting to HK$5,085,000 was to be made for the
property, plant and equipment in Brazil in view of its decline in
value in use.

Note:  Owner-occupied leasehold land is included in property, plant
and equipment as the allocations between the land and
buildings elements cannot be made reliably.

RZZETNAENAZ+HE AEEEREEES
10,262,000/ 7T ( ZFZF /\4F : 12,636,000/ 7T) 2
BT REFERETFRT  (FARKERS
RITRVE ZHEIR -

EE ERHFRAEEZNE  BEFRTZEM
REFE Y - BB K 1ELS5,085,000%7T
ZREEE -

MiEE:  BRTHBREBTROTEAELES  EAA
ERZ RO EFAYE - BERRE -
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2009 2008
—EBNF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
COST RAME
At beginning of the year F9) 5,091,079 3,334,755
Currency realignment HE 5 B 13 154
Additions NE 167,310 319,800
Transferred from deposits and BERE RIENFERAR
prepaid development costs 1,269,060 1,436,370
At end of the year F 6,527,462 5,091,079
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B RORE
At beginning of the year F9) 2,347,256 1,197,698
Provided for the year RNEERME 876,905 713,070
Impairment losses recognised BERERBEEE 164,580 436,488
At end of the year Fuk 3,388,741 2,347,256
CARRYING VALUE REE
At end of the year Fik 3,138,721 2,743,823

Development costs for systems and networks include all direct
costs incurred in the setting up and development of systems
and networks. The Group’s development costs for systems and
networks (other than those that are not yet available for intended
use) are amortised over the estimated economic useful lives of
a maximum of five years.

During the year, management has determined that no future
benefit will be generated for certain specific development
costs and accordingly, the carrying amounts of the
respective development costs were fully impaired. The
amount of impairment loss recognised during the year was
HK$164,580,000.

In the prior year, the management conducted a review of

the Group’s development costs for systems and networks in
light of the then market condition and determined that certain
development costs for systems and networks were impaired
based on the estimated recoverable amounts with reference to
their values in use. The values in use were determined based
on the estimated future cash flows discounted at a rate of 10%
per annum. Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$436,488,000
were recognised in the prior year.

R Bz AERANBERI KA RS IE
MRZFIBERKAR - AEEZ RGRBH 2 ME
AN EE A ERFR(RZEF) TREHE(ER
AHEREVERGERIN) o

RAFE  EEEHRTAE TEEHERATER
RREEFAH = - Bt - BEAREKAZER
BER2ERE AFECHERZREBESES
164,580,000/ 7T

EEEARERMAHASERRRBS ZMAE
PRAHITERR - WS EHE 2 EREBENGERT
WKEeBAEERTE RS TER KRB ZFEK
ELRE - FRBEDREMGFARKRESRIE
FREA0RMIBMEE - At » KFEBR2ZR
{B/E518/5436,488,000/8 7T °
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Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,

at acquisition, to the cash generating units ("CGUs”") that
are expected to benefit from that business combination. The
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

BEMBREEBRAE —E2NFFR

ENFAA=THILFE

EBAGREzBEDREER S EEREHR
BREBEH2ERBM([FREM]) - BB
FREED DR ¢

2009 & 2008
“EBNER
—EENF
HK$’000
FH

Provision of e-lottery services RMUEFHERES

36,795

For each of the years ended 30 June 2009 and 2008,
management of the Group determines that there was no
impairment of its CGUs containing goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined from value
in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs
during the period. Management estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth
rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in
selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review for
goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets and projected for the next four years
and discounted at a rate of 10% (2008: 10%) which reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on
industry growth forecasts. No impairment loss was considered
necessary.

BE_ZTNFR_ZEZENFAA=+HIEERE
FE -ASEEHERT  HIAeasngzeg
R ERE

BREM I REEBARBEEFEELE
IF_ EREEFHE /XZIR1E§?&/15&HHWZQEEE
BEEFUREBREEKAZERE
Eﬁﬁﬁ—ﬂiﬂg&?ﬁfﬁ ﬁﬁﬁpﬂﬁzfﬁﬁﬁvﬁ&
%ﬁ%ﬁZﬁiﬂ[ﬁiZfﬂﬁ\ R REIR R AR
B ERRNPITERRFENAESE - EBREE
AR Z BB T ABEIE D RIEH 2 KRR I5E

RERE -

FRAREERASHBYNCREEEERE
RO BREMG 2 RROFRER) B
HREBEITRESMN - XEAI0%(ZFRN\F
10%) 2 BRI E A R BR & BT 1 35 ATt 2 IR & A
RBREN 2 FERRE - BRRTIATEERR
BREE - AEBERABAFELRERS
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License
rights
R
HK$'000
THET
COST RAE
Balance at 1 July 2007, 30 June 2008 RZTZTLFLA—A ZTTN\FAA=1+AH
and 30 June 2009 RZZBTAFRNA=TR2&EH 11,800
AMORTISATION B
Balance at 1 July 2007 RIZZLFLA—HAZHER 4,130
Charge for the year FREEH 2,360
Balance at 30 June 2008 RZZBZENFRA=TB &R 6,490
Charge for the year F Y 2,360
Balance at 30 June 2009 RIBZAFANA=+H 28R 8,850
CARRYING VALUE AREE
At 30 June 2009 RZEEAFRA=TH 2,950
At 30 June 2008 R-ZBENFRA=+H 5,310
The license rights for provision of e-lottery businesses were RBEEE  ARAFDWEREE FLELEK Y
acquired as part of a business combination in previous years. R e A RIRA G Y — 2D o ASEFRE R E ]
The license rights have definite useful lives and are amortised FBE - WIRFIIEEN Szt AE(UREE S
on a straight-line basis over the period of the right granted or 5 ) LB 4GRS o

years, whichever is shorter.
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2009 2008
—BEAF ZTT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Unlisted equity securities, at cost, AT BRI AEAEZIE LT
in respect of: fE A
— Interest in e-commerce projects —REFEEEE 2= 104,410 104,410
— Interest in telecommunication projects —REEFEEE 2ER 34,974 34,974
— Other —Efth 862,545 862,545
Impairment loss recognised EWR 2 REER (373,781) (373,781)
628,148 628,148
Unlisted debt securities with guaranteed RUTSEEFREDRZ
return, in respect of: JELTEBES
— Interest in e-commerce projects REFEEIER 2 En 377,750 377,750
— Interest in telecommunication projects —REEHEB 2= 360,201 360,201
— Other —Hfth 1,553,832 1,553,832
Capital receipts from the investment & 2 BRI (1,726,754) (1,410,109)
Impairment loss recognised ERERZ AERIE (104,197) -
460,832 881,674
1,088,980 1,509,822

The unlisted debt securities with guaranteed return represent
the Group’s investments in certain securities which have
guaranteed a pre-determined return to the Group over a fixed
period of time. The pre-determined returns are non-interest
bearing and are denominated in United States dollar. Payments
receivable each year for investments with pre-determined return
are apportioned between income and reduction of the carrying
value of the investments so as to reflect a constant periodic rate
of return. The pre-determined sums will be received for a period
of 5 years by half-yearly instalments and are discounted at the
effective interest rate of 10% (2008: 10%) per annum.

The unlisted equity investments represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated
outside Hong Kong. They are measured at cost less impairment
losses at each balance sheet date because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot
be measured reliably.

During the year, the management has determined that

certain unlisted debt securities with guaranteed return were
irrecoverable. Full provision for impairment of HK$104,197,000
were made during the year in respect of these debt securities.

BREFELOFZIF EMERBZHFEAEESTRE
EFHARNEESRIBEREL R FHILE -
T8 E [B1 3R B A ) 8 ILA%FEEHE BERE
TEERMEBRE 2 BRRBLERZERAR
RAREEZHE LA&@%IEZE%@#&?"
FBE BN F NG LEDHIURE - WiRETF
10%(ZFT/\F : 10%) 2 EBFRELIR -

FELETRARE RN EBIAIMNE R MK 2 7L

ANBREMBTZELETRARS ZRE - ZER
BERNBBEBIERANREREBRE - tJhH
NEEZAFEEGESEEXN  ARAAEER
RARBER] et B E NP (BE -

AEE TEEBRAATHERERRZIELT
EREEREBELRKRE - RAFECHRZSE
B EEH 2 BURE R 104,197,000% 7T °
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The management reviewed the carrying amounts of the
unlisted equity securities in light of the market condition with
reference to the financial results and business operated by the
investees. The management estimated an impairment loss of
HK$56,502,000 based on expected cash flows projection from
such investments in the prior year.

EEE2EREHRIVBEEREGEE I
BIEMBRAMERIELTRAZHFREZER
- BEEXAFREZSREZBHRES ARG
BB E51E56,502,000/8 7T °

2009 2008

—senE S

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FHT

Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRRRD « IRARANE 31 31
Impairment loss recognised EHER 2 RIERE (31) (31)

Particulars of the Group'’s principal associate at 30 June 2009
are as follows:

R-BEAFAASE  AREEEBEAT
SEWT

Proportion of
nominal value of

Place of issued capital
Name of company incorporation held by the Company Principal activities
ARBRFEZ
AEER o 17 B L 3th B ERITRAHEELS FEXH
Belcher Technology Limited Samoa 31% Provision of software
EERHS consultation service and

During the year, the management has determined that no
future benefit will be generated for certain specific projects.
Accordingly, the carrying amounts of the related deposits and
prepaid development costs were fully impaired, amounting to
HK$40,560,000.

In the prior year, the management conducted a review of the

Group’s deposits and prepaid development costs in light of the

current market condition and determined that certain deposits
and prepaid development costs were impaired based on the
estimated recoverable amounts with reference to their values in

use. The values in use were determined based on the estimated

future cash flows discounted at a rate of 10% per annum.
Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$245,310,000 were
recognised in prior year.

development of software
systems
TR o AR TS S

RAFE  EEERAATETBERRERTE
ELEFAFE - Bt - 8RS RIEFREKRA
BRAZETDEZR2ERE © © % A40,560,000
T °

EF - EEEREEAMAHARE  Ze KB
NRBKAEITERN  WIRSEREZFEREE
st 2 AT E S5 - REAE TRE REMNH
B ANHETITIRVE o EREEDREGETTRRRE
MIRFREA0%RMBMEE - At - KFZRE
E518 B 1#32/5245,310,0008 7T °
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2009 2008

—ZTAE ZTT)N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Raw materials Rt 13,728 13,675
Work in progress ER S 3,110 3,212
Finished goods BIRK 7,713 8,577
24,551 25,464

2009 2008

—EEAF ZTT)N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHExT FHT

Trade receivables FEUWE Z R 827,794 464,447
Guaranteed distribution receivables FEWRTE 2R 201,524 267,553
Advance to suppliers and other receivables  FB# i i i E & e U E b BR X 239,566 420,497
1,268,884 1,152,497

The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy regarding its FEEREBSELPEITHBZEEER « R

trade customers depending on their credit worthiness, nature
of services and products, industry practice and condition of
the market with credit period ranging from 30 to 180 days. The
guaranteed distribution receivables, advance to suppliers and
other receivables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
payable on demand.

The aged analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date is as
follows:

BEZER - REREMZEE - TTRRE LT
SIEAMGBETELNTI0E180HZEEH - &
WHREE Ik - TE AR e 78 R I8 e R U EL A AR R
I - TR B RBRBAEE -

MR 5 BRRN RS B Z BRI O

2009 2008

—EThEF —TEN\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHET

0 - 60 days 0-60H 458,802 334,465
61 — 90 days 61 -90H 256,433 120,415
91 -180 days 91 -180H 107,434 7,536
> 180 days >180H 5,125 2,031

827,794 464,447
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Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance and
sales management team would assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and define the credit limit for the customers. Limits
attributable to customers are reviewed regularly with reference
to past settlement history.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$5,125,000 (2008:
HK$2,031,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
age of these receivables ranged from 180 days to 320 days in
both years.

The trade and other receivables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

REREFRFELH - AEBM K RHEEER
BEHEEEREF 2 EEERRAEBEREZEE
R -BTFRFZEERBELEREMLELHE
EITEHRA

AEBECZRERESEREHRRIERELER
5,125,000/ 7T ( ZZFZ\F : 2,031,00087T ) 2
BIE - AR RS AR - BAREEKRR
ZEBEELRESERE AEERERZEE
BEEEMNERD - RMEFERN - ZZEKE
KRB N F180A =320H

VAMERASE B E BB I BE B IASN 2 IR FHE 2 FEIR
B 5 REMERKEIINT

2009 2008

“EBhEF —TENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THT TATT

Hong Kong dollar BT 113,662 197,548

Deposits, bank balances and cash

TR RTEFERRE

2009 2008

—EBNF —TENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Interest bearing deposits M ETFER 7,523 228,671
Bank balances and cash BOTEFERES 315,183 122,057
322,706 350,728

The Group's deposits, bank balances and cash that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities are set out below:

AREZER  RiTAEFRAS - WERSEE
BUEREUINZBETHE - 8T

2009 2008

—EEAF —ETNF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FHET

United States dollar ETT 219 109,190
Hong Kong dollar BT 2,390 829
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR - 36
Other Eih 423 4,162
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Deposits, bank balances and cash (Continued)

The deposits, bank balances and cash comprise short-term
deposits with maturity of three months or less and cash held by
the Group. The deposits carried interest at an average rate of
0.002% (2008: 1.3%).

Certain bank balances and cash of HK$5,378,000 (2008:
HK$4,056,000) were denominated in RMB, which is not freely
convertible currency in the international market. The exchange
rate of RMB is determined by the Government of the PRC

and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
exchange restrictions imposed by the Government of the PRC.

Bank overdrafts
Bank overdrafts carry interest at an average rate of 4.3% (2008:
5.7%).

As at 30 June 2009, the balance of trade and other

payables included trade payables of HK$13,261,000 (2008:
HK$147,847,000). The aged analysis of trade payables at the
reporting date is as follows:

R RBRTEFERRE(E)

G BOTEERRSEEAEERF 2R =E
ASUAREEZ BT HREES - BREZF
EFRE0.002B(—ZZNF  1.3E) »

5,378,000/ L (=T Z \F : 4,056,000% 7T ) 2 B
DIRTHEFRASUAAREE - MARKIWIE
RBEETSEEHLRCEE - AREZEREH
BEBNETE - AFEELZEEZTRBNE
8.2 HINEE B Il FTAR PR ©

RITEX
RITEX 2 FHFNRRIZE(ZTZNEF : 57
E) -

RZZETAFEARNA=Z1+HE  BENESREME
M2 R B 15132610008 L ( ZFTF )\ F -
147,847,000/ 2 BN B HEN - BN E SR
KRS BH 2 BRERDTAAT -

2009 2008

—EEAF —ETNF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

0 -60 days 0-60H 8,035 9,419
61 — 90 days 61 -90H 775 28,067
91 -180 days 91 -180H 3,417 107,419
> 180 days >180H 1,034 2,942
13,261 147,847

The credit period on purchases of goods ranged from 30 days
to 60 days.

BEEYM BN T30HZE60H °
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2009 2008

—E2EAF —ETNF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At beginning of the year F4) 2,136 1,860
Currency realignment M 5 A (314) 147
Provided during the year FRERE 1,932 2,798
Utilised during the year FANEEHA (2,241) (2,669)
At end of the year FiE 1,513 2136

The warranty provision represents the management’s best
estimate of the Group’s liability under 12 month warranties
granted on manufactured products, based on prior experience

and industry average for defective products.

REBERERERRBTERRENTARIE

EmZEBRME - RIEFHEK

Tz 128 AR

BEEMHAEEEEEL Z RERE -

2009 2008
—EENEF —ZT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiBxT FHET

Bank borrowings comprise the following:  $R1T&EEG4E 75 :
Bank loans RITER 215,069 249,893
Mortgage loan RISER = 372
215,069 250,265

Included in the Group's balance above as at 30 June 2009 were
bank borrowings of HK$40,069,000 (2008: HK$372,000), which
were secured by the Group'’s land and buildings with carrying
value of HK$10,262,000 (2008: HK$12,636,000).

R-BEAENA=ZTH - AEER Ll &%
BIERAEEREEA10,262,0008 T ( ZFF
J\EF 1 12,636,000/ 7T ) 2 T i RIEFIEEA 2 R
17185 40,069,000/ 70 (ZZTZ \F : 372,000/8

75)) ©
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2009 2008
—EBNF ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FHT
Bank borrowings bear interest at RETMSNEGFEZ
prevailing market rates and are RITEE 2 ERD
repayable as follows: T
On demand or within one year REAK—FAN 178,043 201,313
Between one to two years —EWF 4,565 4,647
Between two to five years MERF 32,461 44,305
215,069 250,265
Less: Amount due within one year B —FREIEWESE
shown under current liabilities REAEZEHE (178,043) (201,313)
Amount due after one year —FRIHzEH 37,026 48,952

The above bank borrowings bear variable interest at an average

rate of 2.6% (2008: 2.8%).

LARITE B IR F B KAL)

(ZZZNF :28E) °

&5

T

C EEFE A2 6E

2009 2008
—EEAF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
The other borrowings represent block HitEERARITHNER
discounting loans and are payable HEFRENT -
as follows:
Within one year —F RN 176 489
More than one year but not exceeding HRiBm—FERER
two years - 193
176 682
Less: Amount due within one year B —FREEESIE
shown under current liabilities ik =Rl (176) (489)
Amount due after one year —FRIMz R = 193

The above other borrowings bear variable interest at an average

rate of 9.0% (2008: 9.0%).

LR EMEERTEFEGE - FIHNERI0E

(ZZEENE :90E) -
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HK$'000
FHIT
As at 1 July 2007 RZTTLFEA—H 35,880
Currency realignment I 5 3% (1)
Change in fair value during the year FRATFEEZS 2,282
Converted during the year FRHMR (37,351)
Redeemed during the year ERERE (780)
As at 30 June 2008 RZEEN\FA=1H -
Issue of 1% convertible bond BITE B ERES 188,553
Redeemed during the year FAER (52,092)
As at 30 June 2009 RZTZENFA=1H 136,461

The outstanding convertible bond as at 30 June 2009 may be
early redeemed at the option of the Company or the convertible
bond holder as mentioned in notes (d) and (e) below, at any
time up to 19 September 2010 or 19 September 2011 at the
option of the Company and thus are classified as current
liabilities.

On 19 September 2008, the Company issued a convertible
redeemable bond (the “Convertible Bond”) in the principal
amount of HK$188,553,000 pursuant to a sale and purchase
agreement dated 13 August 2008 between the Company
and Lawnside (the “Bondholder”). The principal terms of the
Convertible Bond were as follows:

(@) The outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Bond
may be converted at the option of the Bondholder in whole
or in part into shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company at
any time from the date of issue of the Convertible Bond
(the “Issue Date”) up to the second anniversary of the Issue
Date (the “Maturity Date”), or the third anniversary of the
Issue Date if the Company shall have given written notice
for such extension of time to the Bondholder ten days prior
to the second anniversary of the Issue Date, at a price equal
to higher of the initial conversion price of HK$0.77 (after
adjustment on 23 May 2009 as a result of the rights issue
of the Company) (the “Initial Conversion Price”), subject
to adjustment; and the average of the volume-weighted
average prices of the Company's shares for the ten dealing
days ending on the day immediately preceding the date of
a relevant conversion notice delivered by the Bondholder to
the Company multiplied by a factor of 0.8.

HINT XM (d) R (e) Fridt » R=—ZEFTNFRA
= TARERZAIBMBESFTR - —FFNA
THRABERZ AR AR AT RRESFTEAZE
By~ —F AT NAMRARRZE
BRFHED - BOBRRBDEIE -

RZFEENFAATAE ARFREHE
Lawnside ([ EHFHEAL) IR ABPA=Z
TENFENAT=ZA2EEWHWZ  B1TA2EA
188,553,000/ 7T 2 I R AT FE Bl (5 55 ([ AT IR AR (E
%) o ATRRESF 2 EBHEFKAT ¢

(@) AHEBREFZHREERNSEIRESFE
AZBE - BRBEREFETR(EITA]
2RTEMBF((2HA DR(HAR AR
BITEMBFA T ARESFEARZLER
BHHEEBM) BITEZBFAEARRE - &
HERVF LB TTET(ENR T NF
EAZT=ARRAHRBRRFHE - 7] THE)
(TFHE]) « KEREFHEAREAR
AE AR B BB HER S H 2R
DA BENETIHE 2 FHEHREIA.8
ZBREABTS LI ATRBRESBAR
BIEREE0 BT ZI
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(b) The Convertible Bond bears interest at the rate of 1% per
annum and interest will be payable biannually in arrears in
March and September in each year.

(c) Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and
cancelled, the Convertible Bond will be redeemed at 100%
of the principal amount at maturity.

(d) The Company shall be entitled to require redemption
of the Convertible Bond or any part thereof at any time
commencing from the first anniversary of the Issue Date at
an amount equal to such principal amount of the Convertible
Bond redeemed plus any interest accrued thereon.

(e) The Bondholder shall be entitled to require redemption
of the Convertible Bond or any part thereof at any time
commencing after the Issue Date in the event the average
of the closing prices of the Company’s share on the Stock
Exchange for each of the 15 consecutive dealing days
falling within the period of 30 days immediately prior to the
date of such notice of redemption is less than 50% of the
Initial Conversion Price.

(f)  The Maturity Date may be extended to 19 September 2011
at the option of the Company, by giving written notice for
such extension to the Bondholder ten days prior to the
Maturity Date.

As the conversion price was not fixed and the conversion

option of the Convertible Bond would not result in settlement

by the exchange of a fixed amount for fixed number of equity
instruments, the conversion option was regarded as a derivative.

The Convertible Bond included the liability component and
embedded derivative (including the conversion option and an
early redemption option).

The fair value of the liability component of the Convertible Bond
at 30 June 2009 was determined based on the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the average yield
of a group of non-convertible bonds with similar credit rating
and structure which incorporated appropriate adjustments to
reflect possible impact of country factor, firm specific risk and
liquidity risk.

(b) AIHAERESTERFENFIEBRE - MAERE
FZARNAGEESHXN -

© MIFAMBEEFCRRFEAMED - HRKiE
AR DRIFRRESERIHRED

(d) ARRKERERERITE —BERKEEE
VAR S 70 B [0 AT ARAE 73 2 3% 78 2 B8 AR
FEEHA SR E AR R E S K B AR RS -

) BETARZEMERE  MARBRNNRE
FZMERR A B IR =1 B B E B 1518
X5 BREER Pz P RN Y
B250%  BEHFFHAEARBEERAARE
Bl AR S R DD o

() ARRALEE - RIMER+HRESHE
ABHERBRAY - BRHARRE—_T——
FAATAE -

BN REWIEEE - MAlRRkES 2 RS
TEEYRETSBEINEEHA ZBATA
BUOLRERAR BOTET A -

BBRESEEaERS RAESTETA(BRER
BN REEREE) -

RZZETAFANA=+H  AJRREHFEETD
ZRAFEBEDREMGFARASR - Z—HAE
BUGEFE LB T aERS 2 190
HE - WMASEABARRBERERE - R
ERBRERBESRBAIGEELEZZE  BRZ
REMEE
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The fair value of the conversion option embedded was
calculated using the Binomial model. The key inputs were as
follows:

NEz Rtz A FEEAZEXBEEERR
sHE o EXAEENT ¢

30.6.2009
—ETNFERA=1H

Stock price (&
Exercise price 7B
Expected volatility TEHERIR 18
Maturity life T HREEHY

ER A
FEHE R X

Risk-free rate
Expected dividend yield

The change in the fair value of the Convertible Bond was
insignificant during the year, hence no fair value change were
charged or credited to profit or loss.

In previous years, Kantone had entered into a subscription
agreement with an independent third party for the subscription
of an aggregate principal amount of up to US$24,000,000 1%
convertible bond due 2008 (the “Kantone Bonds”) of Kantone.
The outstanding Kantone Bonds were fully redeemed upon
maturity in the prior year.

The following is the deferred taxation liability recognised and
movement thereon:

HK$0.275/8 ¢
HK$0.77%8 7T
94%

1.2 yearsfF
0.23%

1.72%

FRAATRRERZATEELTEEAES - M
BEXAFEEESINA K AR -

RBEEE  BBREBYE=HILRE RS
REFEBRARTR ST NFIHY  AEEBES
% /524,000,000 T2 FE1ERRES ([ HiR
&5 - Mepz BBEFCOR AT HERE0E
@ °

ERREEHRAELEZSEHINT

Accelerated for
depreciation

DT EE
2009 2008
—EEAF —TTN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Balance at beginning of the year FHEERR 157 149
Currency realignment (RIS (14) 8
Balance at end of the year FREAERR 143 157

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$373,431,000 (2008: HK$327,189,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. These tax losses may be carried forward infinitely.

REER  AEBBADACHBEBEBERD
373,431,000 7T (= Z = )\ & : 327,189,000/
J0) AR B R ZEF - MREATERB%
ZIRFIIOR - BRI RIEEE o WER
THET 18 AT FE IR B AT A5 8 o
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Number
of shares Amount
RAEE Ex]
‘000 HK$'000
VAT BRE TET
Authorised share capital of HK$0.1 each: BREEVIBTEERAE
Balance at 1 July 2007, 30 June 2008 RIZZ+F+A—B ZFTN\F
and 30 June 2009 ANR=HARZEENFSA=THZEH 30,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capital of EBREBE0IATIEETR
HK$0.1 each: BB :
Balance at 1 July 2007 P S o Rl =P 1,603,624 160,362
Issue of shares upon exercise of 2008 Warrants  —ZZ )\ FRRAEEE T MEE TR 59,314 5,932
Issue of shares upon exercise of 2009 Warrants = ZZ L4 R RAE BT TIE MBI TR 10 1
Issue of shares as 2007 final scrip dividend BIIROIER =SS LERBREARKE 25,241 2,524
Issue of shares as 2008 interim scrip dividend — Z4TRA1EAR T )\ Fh HI S ABRHK & 18,311 1,831
Issue of shares on acquisition of a subsidiary BT LAREE — M B A Al 268,000 26,800
Balance at 30 June 2008 and 1 July 2008 RZZZNFAA=THEK
ZEE\FLA-BzEH 1,974,500 197,450
Issue of shares upon exercise of 2009 Warrants ~ —ZZ 5 AR BRI THE M 1T 1 =
Issue of shares as 2008 final scrip dividend BEIRMIEA-ZENFREBREURKE 16,325 1,632
Issue of shares as 2009 interim scrip dividend  E{TRNDIEA-ZZTNEHREREURRE 23,878 2,388
Issue of shares upon rights issue RERREITRG 1,990,826 199,083
Balance at 30 June 2009 RZTZNFASA=THZER 4,005,530 400,553

During the year, the following changes in the share capital of the
Company took place:

(@)

G5

During the year, 638 shares of HK$0.1 each were issued
at HK$1.6 per share as a result of the exercise of the 2009
Warrants (as defined under the section headed “Warrants”
below) of the Company by the warrantholders;

In January 2009, 16,325,340 shares of HK$0.1 each were
issued at a price of HK$0.2 per share upon election by
shareholders to receive shares in the Company in lieu of the
2008 final dividend in cash pursuant to the scrip dividend
scheme as detailed in a circular dated 16 December 2008;

In June 2009, 23,877,848 shares of HK$0.1 each were
issued at a price of HK$0.185 per share upon election by
shareholders to receive shares in the Company in lieu of the
2009 interim dividend in cash pursuant to the scrip dividend
scheme as detailed in a circular dated 13 May 2009;

WAER - ADAZBAEATE

(@

FA - ARRBEEERFEATEARAZZ
TTNFRBER (ER R T X RBHEE—
g7) - Btk - 638X FAREEO. BT ZRHE
BRI 6B B8 T AR

R-BBAE—A  REREREEHA=
TE NG+ A5 ZBRAFERZ AR
BB AR FIRA R IR & R =
TTN\FREWEE%  ADARERO2ET
2 (%77 16,325,340 SR EEO. BT 2
B

RZZTAFERA  BRREEREAHA=
TTAFAAT=BZBEHATFHLZ ABRK
BETEl  UARAROARBUBE KR =F
TRFFEREE - AR EIZRER0.18558TT
2 (B1%387723,877,848 R BREE0A BT Z
15
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(d) InJune 2009, the Company issued 1,990,826,245 rights
shares of HK$0.1 each at the subscription price of HK$0.1
per rights share on the basis of one rights share for
every existing share held, details of the rights issue of the
Company were set out in a prospectus dated 26 May 2009.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares in
issue in all respects.

Warrants

On 23 October 2006, the Company proposed a bonus issue of
new warrants (“2008 Warrants”) to subscribe for shares equal

to 20% of the number of issued shares of HK$0.1 each on 27
February 2007, to the shareholders of the Company whose
names appeared on the register of members on 22 November
2006. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 22
November 2006, 316,478,617 units of 2008 Warrants were issued
on 8 March 2007 to the shareholders of the Company at an
initial subscription price of HK$1.38 per share of HK$0.1 each of
the Company. The 2008 Warrants expired on 7 March 2008.

On 26 October 2007, the Company proposed a bonus issue of
new warrants (“2009 Warrants”) to subscribe for shares equal
to 20% of the number of issued shares of HK$0.1 each on 8
March 2008, to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appeared on the register of members on 23 November 2007.
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 23 November
2007, 337,635,936 units of 2009 Warrants were issued on 20
March 2008 to the shareholders of the Company to subscribe for
shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company at an initial subscription
price of HK$1.6 per share. The 2009 Warrants expired on 16
April 2009.

During the year, 2009 Warrants carrying subscription rights of
HK$1,021 (2008: HK$14,994) were exercised.

As at 30 June 2009, all 2009 Warrants were expired (2008: the
outstanding number of 2009 Warrants were 337,626,565).

(d) RZZEZAERA  RARAREFE—EHR
ﬁﬂxﬁT%% Hxﬁi\ﬂxﬂxfﬁzgi‘éﬁﬂ%ﬁi
BB £20.178 70 2 REB{EE£171,990,826,245%
FREECABITZHERN - RABMHEZ
HEHNEHRA-ETNFAA T RBZ
=R -

PrEBLL BT RMESTE
TR FE RS -

MERIHAEEE

PRI R

RIZZXE+A-+=0 " ARFAEEARZ
TEXRNF+—A-+-BRIBREBMZEARF]
RV EATHALFRIREE ([ Z T NFERIRE
#F)  URBEER=-TTLF-_A=t+tB2Z
BT D B 20% .2 FREE0. 17 TTAXD ° 1R
BR-_EERF+—A-+-HBBz—HEAE
R » 316,478,617 — B \ERIREEFED R
ZESLF=ANBEITTFARBRE  BRERA
BER1.38B T2 VI REERBEARNFTSFRE
BOANBTZD - ZETN\FRAREECR=Z
SN\E=ZAEAER -

R-ZTLFE+A=1+E  ARAREBFHAR =
TR E+— A +=HRIIBREM AT
REFBATIHANARRAEE ([ ZTTNFRRE
Fl) UREBHEERZ=ZZETN\F=ZANAZE
BITIRIDENE 20% 2 BIREE0. 1B T D - 1RIR
RIZETLHF+—A-+=ARBZ—BLBER
28 v 337,635,9361) — T T NFRBREEFED R
TENF=ZA=Z+HBETFARAMRE - BRFRA
BER1.6BTZNPREBRBARTEREE
ONBTTZBG - —TTNERBREFER-ZT
NEWA+NBER °

FR - ME1,0218T(ZFZ/N\F 14,9948 7T)
REEZ —TTHFRREECETE -

*2”%&ﬁﬂ2+a 2B _TTIEFR
BEEIH(CZTNGE  AETEZ_TTIF
ﬁh%%ﬁ%z&a%%ﬂ
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Each of the Company, Kantone, a 53% owned subsidiary of
the Company, and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM, a 78% owned
subsidiary of the Company, has a share option scheme under
which eligible persons, including directors of the Company,
Kantone, DIGITALHONGKONG.COM or any of their respective
subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe for shares
in the Company, Kantone and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
respectively.

(i) The Company
On 29 November 2002, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Champion Option Scheme”) which,
with a remaining life of about 3 years, will expire on 28
November 2012. The purpose of the Champion Option
Scheme is to attract and to retain quality personnel and
other persons and to provide them with incentive to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
Under the Champion Option Scheme, the directors may
grant options to any directors, employees, consultants,
advisors in respect of business, operation, management,
technology, legal, accounting and financial matters of the
Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include the aforesaid
persons or a company beneficially owned by the aforesaid
persons as well as customers and suppliers of the Group,
to subscribe for shares of the Company. The option granted
by the Company is exercisable at any time for a period
determined by its directors which will be less than ten years
from the date of grant, where the acceptance date should
not be later than 21 days after the date of offer.

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided
therein) of the option under the Champion Option Scheme
is the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the
closing price per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day; or (iii) the average closing price per share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet

for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the options. The maximum number of shares

in respect of which the options may be granted under the
Champion Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of approval
of the Champion Option Scheme. The total maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of

all outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the last date of such 12-month period, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. No option has
been granted by the Company under the Champion Option
Scheme since its adoption.
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(ii) Kantone (i) &

On 29 November 2002, Kantone adopted the share option
scheme (the “Kantone Option Scheme”) which will expire
on 28 November 2012. The purpose of the Kantone Option
Scheme is to attract and to retain quality personnel and to
provide them with incentive to contribute to the business
and operation of the Group. Under the Kantone Option
Scheme, the directors may grant options to any eligible
persons of the Group, including directors, employees,
consultants, advisors in respect of business, operation,
management, technology, legal, accounting and financial
matters of Kantone, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include the
aforesaid persons or a company beneficially owned by the
aforesaid persons as well as customers and suppliers of the
Group, to subscribe for shares in Kantone. Options granted
are exercisable at any time for a period determined by its
directors which will be less than ten years from the date of
grant, where the acceptance date should not be later than
21 days after the date of offer.

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided
therein) of the option under the Kantone Option Scheme is
equal to the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares;
(i) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; or (i) the average closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant. The maximum number of shares in respect

of which the options may be granted under the Kantone
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of Kantone at the date of approval of the Kantone
Option Scheme. The total maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of Kantone
from time to time. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
Kantone in issue on the last date of such 12-month period,
without prior approval from Kantone’s shareholders. No
option has been granted by Kantone under the Kantone
Option Scheme since its adoption.
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(iii) DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (i) AR E B

On 29 November 2002, DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
adopted a share option scheme (the “DHK Option
Scheme”), which will expire on 28 November 2012. The
purpose of the DHK Option Scheme is to attract and to
retain quality personnel and other persons and to provide
them with incentive to contribute to the business and
operation of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM and its subsidiaries
(the “DIGITALHK Group”). Under the DHK Option Scheme,
the directors may grant options to any directors, employees,
consultants, advisors in respect of business, operation,
management, technology, legal, accounting and financial
matters of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM, its subsidiaries

or affiliates or any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well as
customers and suppliers of the DIGITALHK Group, to
subscribe for shares of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM. Options
granted by DIGITALHONGKONG.COM are exercisable at
any time for a period of up to ten years from the date of
grant, where the acceptance date should not be later than
21 days after the date of offer.

The exercise price of the option is the highest of (i) the
nominal value of the shares; (i) the closing price per share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet

on the date of grant, which must be a business day; or (i)
the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The total maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise

of all outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
from time to time. The number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any individual in any
12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM in issue on the last
date of such 12-month period, without prior approval from
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM’s shareholders. No option

has been granted by DIGITALHONGKONG.COM under
the DIGITALHONGKONG.COM Option Scheme since its
adoption .
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In September 2008, Kantone acquired the entire issued share
capital of Good Holdings for a consideration of HK$328,600,000
satisfied entirely by the issue of 620,000,000 shares of Kantone.

The net assets acquired at the date of acquisition was as
follows:

RZZZENFNA - FBEKEGood HoldingsZ &
EBEBITARAR - 1B /5328,600,00078 7T + ABETT
620,000,000/ & BRI ZH T ©

RUE B AT R 2 B ESHEHR ST

HK$'000
FHIT
Assets acquired: Fl & E
Deposits and prepaid development costs &4 & T8 B 3B A 328,600
Total consideration BRE 328,600
Satisfied by ARG R AF
— Shares of Kantone (Note) —FERm (KsE) 328,600

Kantone acquired Good Holdings for the deposits and prepaid
development costs which it has paid for development of gaming
software and sports network systems, and hence the acquisition
was accounted for as an acquisition of asset.

Note:  The acquisition is satisfied by the issue of 620,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company with par value of HK$0.1 each. The fair
value of these ordinary shares of the Company, determined
using the published price available at the date of the acquisition,
amounted to HK$328.6 million

In May 2008, the Company acquired the entire issued share
capital of Big World International Limited (“Big World”) for cash
consideration of HK$50,000,000 and the issue of 268,000,000
shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company with a fair value of
HK$313,560,000.

FiEUEEGood Holdings * BIEEE X Mike kA
5 BB AR N LA B B BB B A IR B B AR AR R
I B A— TR B E RS -

My RBBRELABE17620,000,0000 A1 RIE R EIE
0BT Z EBEZN » ZUAR R EBBAND
2 RXF{E{E /328,600,000 7T - THRIEEEE B
FRERERERE

RZZEZENEFRA  ARAUBRERE
50,000,000 70 f 2 77268,000,0004% & A EI1E0.1
Bz ARARRG - AR F(E{ER313,560,000
77T+ W Big World International Limited ([ Big
World]) 2 2#E BTN ©
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The net assets acquired at the date of acquisition was as
follows:

RUEE BRI R 2 BEFEHSIT -

Premium
paid on
acquisition
Book value of asset Total
WBEERZ
BREE EhRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET
Net assets acquired: WS EFE
Deposits and prepaid development costs &4 K FBFFIEER A 355,828 11,733 367,561
Other payables FE S H AR BR X (4,001) = (4,001)
351,827 11,733 363,560
Total consideration HRE 363,560
The above acquisition was satisfied by ATFIA A Ei iR (E
— Cash —BE 50,000
— Shares of the Company — QAR 313,560
363,560
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition EUWEEE 2R &FERH
Cash consideration paid BENBReRE 50,000

The Group acquired Big World for the deposits and prepaid
development costs which it has paid for development of a
software system for logistics and smart port management
system for a port currently under development in the PRC and
hence the acquisition was accounted for as an acquisition of
asset.

During the year, Kantone acquired a subsidiary for a
consideration of HK$328,600,000 satisfied by the issue of
620,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each of Kantone.

During the year, the Company issued 1,990,826,245 rights
shares of HK$0.1 each on the basis of one rights share for
every existing share held (see note 31(d)). Lawnside had taken
up and accepted rights entitlement in full under the rights issue
in respect of 520,922,908 right shares. The subscription price
of HK$52,092,000 were settled by a reduction of the principal
amount of the Convertible Bond held by Lawnside.

In the prior year, the Group disposed of its deposits and prepaid
development costs of HK$216,840,000 in return for equity
interests in certain available-for-sale investments.

AEBUEEBIg World » BIFEE S Hme kB
FEKAARBEM ARG ZSERBEAOTER
#o A BAMERPZ—EPEED - Btk
BRRA—EEEWE -

TR BEBRERBE-HMBAR  KESR
328,600,000/ 7T * i 38 % 17 620,000,000 B & A
EfE0 VBT 2B BRI LT

FRN - ARRIRERHFE BRI ARG EE M
R A% (7 2 EAEEE1T1,990,826, 24518 F AR EI1E0.178
TCZ B (RBIEES1(d)) ° Lawnside B A& K
B E A EARIE T 2 80520,922,908 A% (AR A% 15 2
HARAE - 52,092,000 7T 2 REEE M LawnsideFT
BB ES 2 A BRI
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2009 2008
—EBEAF ZTT)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of property, B#EWHE - HE K& &R
plant and equipment and development R R 2 RERA
costs for systems and networks: BARY ¢
Authorised but not contracted for BRIEERETH 269,600 362,732
The Group as leasee AEBEEREAEAA

At the balance sheet date, the Group had future minimum lease
payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of rented premises and motor vehicles which fall due as

REER AEEZHEEMERYERIZZ T
e EE  ARRIERNEERE DI
BRI

follows:
2009 2008
—EThE —TENF

Land and Motor Land and Motor
buildings vehicles buildings vehicles
T RIEF RE T RIETF A
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FHT FHT

Operating leases which expire:  &&HE @
Within one year —FR 4,424 2,575 4,501 3,432
In the second to fourth year F_ZFENFE 4,252 3,185 4,960 3,592
8,676 5,760 9,461 7,024

Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to four years
and rentals are fixed for an average term of one to four years.

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group contracted with
tenants in respect of leasing of plant and machinery and
telecommunications networks which fall due as follows:

K@i FOREFHR—E0F MBS
B—EMFZ FHFHER

REBERHBEA
REER - REERBTR] A HHER RS R
FREEERZENZEHERET

2009 2008

—ETAE ZEENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Within one year —ER 480 1,960
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FERF 20,519 29,842
After five years REFE 5,726 7,211
26,725 39,013
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During the year, the Group has the following transactions with
Lawnside, a substantial shareholder of the Company:

FRN - AEBEEAAREBRE LawnsideiETT A
K

2009 2008
ZE2BNF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
Nature of transactions REME
Underwriting commission paid MAD TR
in respect of rights issue of Bz BHEME
the Company 3,675 -
Interest expense on Convertible Bond AMHRARE S B s 1,328 -

These transactions were carried out after negotiation between
the Group and the respective related parties.

The key management personnel are the executive directors of
the Company. The details of remuneration paid to them are set

ZERXHRAKERE QBEALEREKIES ©

TEEBABRARARNTES - SNREHM
ZFIEHRME o

out in note 11.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2009 RZZBZNFRZZZNFSA=TH  KAF
and 2008 are as follows: EXEMBRARZFFBENT
Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
AL BRIRE ARREGZ
DRER BEH HE/ZhEE ERTRAAELS TEXB
2009 2008
“EThE  ZZT)\F
100BESTSHOP.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of e-shopping and
£ EER-2BT internet-based activities
REETFRIREBERS
Aspire Management Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary - US$1,500,000 35%U 31%0  Investment holding
REARRES ZiBR—1,500,000% 7T RAER
Big World International Limited Samoa Ordinary -US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBTHE @Ak —50,000% T REER
Bingo Profits Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary - US$1 53% 51%  Investment holding
EEERRNES LR 1%L RERR
Briar International Limited Samoa Ordinary - US$50,000 100% 100%  Software development
EBTHE @Ak —50,000% T EGE
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Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
Bl A BRTRE LG )3
DARER - e/ AmER ERTRARELS TEXRH
2009 2008
ZEThE  CZETHF
Champion (Cook Islands) Limited* Cook Islands Ordinary - HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERES LRR-1AT REER
Champion Consortium Limited British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary - US$1 100% 100%  Strategic investment
PRC ERRET REMRE
ABRMRES/
s
Champion Fax Machine British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary - US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Investments Limited* PRC LER—1ET RERR
ABAEERES/
T
Champion International British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary - US$50,000 100% 100%  Strategic investments and
Investments Limited PRC investment in
REgBARES/ A% 50,0005 T telecommunications
FE networks and e-commerce
projects
REMRERREBEBER
EYAERA
Champion Luck International Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited B LRR-28T NERE
BEARERAT
Champion Million Industries Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited B LR NERE
HEBXARAT
Champion Pacific Investment Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited £ LER-2BT NERE
BMRABRAR
Champion Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$1,000 100% 100%  Sales of general systems
BERBERAR B Deferred - HK$1,000,000 products and provision

LR —1,00087T
SEFER—1,000,000%7C

of services and software

licensing
HE-RERERRIBMRAES

REFREE
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Proportion of

Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
ML,/ BERIRE ARAEGZ
DRER BEH HE/ZMEs ERTRAAELS TEEH
2009 2008
“EThE  CZZT)\F
Champnet Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Internet business
BEREBRAT BE LER-28T ELSES
Chief Champion Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$1,000 100% 100%  Property investment
TRERAF 0 Deferred - HK$10,000 NERE
LER—1,000%T
EREAR—10,000% 7T
China Sports Network Samoa Ordinary US$1,000,000 53% - Development of gaming
Limited EETEE &R —1,000,000% T software, sports contents,
HERRERAR sports websites and
sports network systems
BEEH  BEAD  BEBUR
BERRZGCREEY
Chinese Paging Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$1,000 100% 100%  Paging operations
FXEHERAR 0 Deferred - HK$2,000,000 IR
LER—1,000%T
EREAR—2,000,000% 7T
Chinese Science & Technology Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Internet business
Limited &k LRE 2B EEczE 3
BB AR
Cyber Solutions Inc. Samoa Ordinary - US$1 100% 100%  Internet business
EETHE LBRET ELSES
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC. British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary - US$1 78% 78%  Provision of an e-commerce
REEBRNES LER—1ET platform for payment process
for global business
RERRARKEFHENR
BFTa
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM* Cayman Islands Ordinary - HK$15,000,000 78% 78%  Investment holding
HEER REFES 1B 15,000,000 REER
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Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
EREL/ BRTRE LG )3
ARER BEw e/ AmER ERTRARELA TEXB
2009 2008
ZEThE  CZETHF
DIGITAL COMMERCE LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 78% 78%  Provision of an e-commerce
B LR platform and evaluation of
e-commerce opportunities
RESTHET AR T
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 78% 78%  Provision of an e-commerce
HEEBERERAT Bk LER-28T platform for payment process
for retail customers and
e-mall based in Hong Kong
RZERFPRIEEAR
EFESREEFHENT
B2FTa
Eagle Landmark Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary - US$1 100% 100%  Provision of treasury services
ERERRNE LRRET TR AR
ESP International Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Advertising and recruitment
ESPEIRE RS BERAR 5 Lk -28T agency
EERAERELE
Good Holdings Limited Republic of Ordinary - US$50,000 53% - Investment holding
Seychelles LBk —50,000%T REER
ERBHANE
Happy Commercial Company Macau Ordinary - MOP25,000 100% 100%  Provision of documentation
Limited R LB 25,0008 services and arrangement and
EXBRAA business consultant
RERERBEZHER
BEER
Happy Union Development Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited B LR NERE
ERERARDNA
Harilela Kantone Hong Kong Ordinary — HK$10,000 55% 55%  Investmentin
Telecommunications 5 L@k —10,000%7T telecommunications
Limited networks
REBEHEE
High Win Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary - US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding and

RREBRES

LER-1ET

strategic investment
REBRRERERE
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Proportion of

Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
ML,/ BRTRE ARAEGZ
DRER BEHI HE/ZMEE ERTRAAELS TEEH
2009 2008
“EThE  CZZT)\F
Honest (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary - MOP100,000 100% 100%  Provision of consulting
Offshore) Limited ! ZiBIR—100,000%F9% senvices, data processing and
selling activities
REBERRY - BURRER
HEED
Hong Kong IT Alliance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Information technology
BREANBHRERAR ) LER-2AT development
BRAAMR
Hydro-Cable Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary - US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
RBERARES LRk —1ET REER
Internet Vehicles Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of internet related
BREAEARDA 0 LR services
RESEBIRERY
Kannet Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Internet operations
ERBRERAT 3 LER-2BT LSt
Kantel Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Investmentin
BREASEARAA 0 LER-28T telecommunications
networks
REBRHS
Kantone Holdings Limited* Cayman Islands Ordinary - HK$341,105,968 53% 51%  Investment holding
BREEERAR FENs AR —341,105,96878 7T RERR
Kantone Paging Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary — HK$1,000 100% 100%  Trading of pagers and provision
ERTXENERAT ) Deferred - HK$2,000,000 of paging services
LR —1,00087T BEETARRAETRE
IRAERR —2,000,000% 70
Kantone (UK) Limited United Kingdom Ordinary - £5,500,000 53% 51%  Investment holding
5 EiBR 5,500,000 REER
Keen Pacific Limited Samoa Ordinary - US$1 53% 51%  Provision of treasury service

BETHES

LER-1ET

BRI
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Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
Bl A BRTRE LG )3
DARER - e/ AmER ERTRARELS TEXRH
2009 2008
ZEThE  CZETHF
Kontone Intemnational Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRERERAR & LR REER
KTT (Cook Islands) Limited* Cook Islands Ordinary - HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERES EiBR—10,00087 REER
Lucky (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary - MOP100,000 100% 100%  Provision of consulting services,
Offshore) Limited R LiBR—100,000%F9% research and development,
and selling activities
REBRRS  HERRAE -
MEEED
Lucky Success Development Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited Bk LR NERE
ERERERAR
Lucky Tone Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
HEREBRAA Bt LER-2BT NERE
M.C. Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Ordinary - £5,500,002 53% 51%  Investment holding
HEHS EiBMR 5,500,002 RERR
Marcotte Limited Samoa Ordinary - US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEGES LER-1ET RE&m
Multitone Electronics PLC United Kingdom Ordinary - £3,830,107 53% 51%  Investment holding, design and
B L3RR —3,830,107E 5 manufacture of
telecommunications system
and equipment
RERR - R REEER
R REM
Multitone Electronics Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Ordinary - MR285,000 53% 51%  Manufacture of
ERER LR — 2850005 KA T telecommunications
equipment
EEBEEM
Multiton Elektronik GmbH Germany Ordinary - €1,022,584 53% 51%  Distribution of
(ki LiBR—1,002, 58481 telecommunications
equipment
AHEESRM
Multitone Rentals Limited United Kingdom Ordinary - £100 53% 51%  Leasing of system products

%E

ERR— 10055

BERRER
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Proportion of

Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
ML,/ BERIRE ARAEGZ
DRER BEH HE/ZMEs ERTRAAELS TEEH
2009 2008
“EThE  CZZT)\F
New Telecomm Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$6,000,000 100% 100%  Trading in telecommunications
HEEABRAT 0 LiBIR 6,000,000 equipment and provision
of related services
EESEEM IREEBRS
Peak Vantage Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary — US$1 53% 51%  Provision of treasury services
Macau LBR-1ET REEBR
LEAMRES/
R
Pearl Delta Inc. Samoa Ordinary - US$1 53% 51%  Provision of treasury services
BETHS LRk —1%T RESBUR
QQKK.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce,
0 LR m-commerce and internet
based activities
RESTHZ  RPBEZIR
BBEALRRYE
Shenzhen Hengyu Science PRC Ordinary - RMB21,000,000 35%!U 31%0  Investment holding
& Technology Company H LHR— AR¥21,000,0007 RERR
Limited*
BEERR(RINBRD R
Silverstrand Investments Samoa Ordinary - US$1 53% 51%  Investment holding
Limited BEDES LBRET REZR
Smart Delta Inc. Samoa Ordinary - US$1 53% 51%  Provision of treasury services
BELHS ERRET RESBUR
Smart (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary - MOP100,000 53% 51%  Provision of services, software
Offshore) Limited ! LR —100,000%F9% licensing and trading of
R CRFIBEREERE) telecommunications
BRAR equipment
RERY - BMETER
EEBEHM
Success (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary - MOP100,000 100% 100%  Provision of consulting services,
Offshore) Limited R L3RR —100,000RM9 % research and development

and selling activities
REBERRY  FRRRE
RHEEED
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2009 EZ_-ZEZENFNH=+HIFFE

Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
ZREL/ ERTRE ARREEL
DNRER ey e/ ARER ERTRAREL S TEEH
2009 2008
“EBhE  CTT\E
Top Gallop International Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary - US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
REEARMES LBR-1ET RERR
Very Happy International Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited 9 LER-2BT NERE
AEEBRBRAE
Victory (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary - MOP100,000 100% 100%  Provision of services, software
Offshore) Limited i1 LR —100,000%F9% licensing and trading in
#2 CRPIEREERY) telecommunications
BRARF products
RERSE  BHETEREE
BREM
Wollaston Limited Samoa Ordinary - US$1 53% 51%  Investment holding
BEGHS LRRET RERR
Y28.COM Inc. British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary - US$1 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce,
ERERRNE LER—1ET m-commerce and internet
based activities
RESTEE  RPBLR
EBEAARY
Y28.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce
BHEBERRF B LER-2ET m-commerce and intemet
based activities
RESTEE  RPBLR
EBEAARY
Y28 Innovations * Cayman Islands Ordinary - HK$0.1 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce,
REHs5 LER-0.15T m-commerce, and intermet
based activities
RESTEE  RPFLR
EBBAARY
Zonal Care Incorporated British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary - US$2 53% 51%  Strategic investments and
Macau investments in e-commerce
EREAREE/ EER-2%TT projects
R RRUERERREETHEER
*  Directly held by the Company * ARRAEERERR
#  Wholly owned foreign enterprise for a term of 20 years commencing #  REHR-_TE=F+At+tARBAS0EZRE
17 October 2003. BRBINRDRE -
0 Kantone holds 66.7% equity interest in these companies, hence it is 0 BEEFBEZENRR66.7%ZBAER  WEER AKX

accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group. SEZHEAR -

+  Deregistered during the year. FAF A -



For the Year Ended 30 June 2009 #iZ.

The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, of each of
the above-mentioned subsidiaries entitled the holders thereof
to:

(a) a fixed non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per
annum for any financial year of the company in question in
respect of which the net profits of such company exceed
HK$100,000,000,000; and

(b) on awinding-up, a return of the capital paid up on such
shares out of the surplus assets of the company in
question after a total sum of HK$100,000,000,000 has been
distributed in such winding up in respect of each of the
ordinary shares of such company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the
year or constituted a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Save as disclosed, none of the subsidiaries had any debt
securities subsisting at 30 June 2009 or at any time during the
year.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
bi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.
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Year ended 30 June
BEAAZTALEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
ZEENE —ZR)\E —TEtF —TENE IR CTIME —35-F —3ECF T3 CIERE
HK$000 HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$'000
TEn AL TAL TAL AL TAL TAL FAL TAL AL
TURNOVER EEL ] 2,923,108 3635049 3164287 299,668 2461710 2249968 18743% 1633388 1510779 1457,181
PROFIT FROM ORDINARY BEAA%
ACTIVITIES BEFORE E3
TAXATION
Profit from operating activities Kb LIER
excluding other operating items ~ zAE¥iRF 403,130 994804 923140 762470 610013 468476 367550 205313 206272 436,035
Other operating items EMiEEEE (298,850) (737,526)  (91071)  (58,124)  (36,429) (104,492 (127,387)  (72893) (5573  (83.307)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION BB AR 104,280 257278 832069 704346 573584 363984 240163 132420 290699 362728
TAXATION A (1,062) (2083  (9171) (85) (517) (704) (1,429 (427) (584)  (3,013)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERT 103218 255215 822898 704261 573067 363280 238734 131993 290,115 349715
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AR -
Equity holders of RRERAER
the Company BEA 74630 190456 626818 549994 458726 206550 191247 133040 249403 30385
Minority interests DERERR 28588 64759 196080 154,267 114,341 66,730 47487 (1,047) 40712 45860
103218 255215 822898 704261 573067 363280 238734 131993 290,115 349715
DIVIDENDS KE 19,968 48112 96,686 7309% 59867 55304 27604 23379 16,286 25,389
At 30 June
RRA=tH
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
ZEENE _IT)\F -TTHF TR _FERE —TEMEF _TICF -TE-F “3T-F -EITF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$O000 HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
AT TAL TAL TAL TEL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
TOTAL ASSETS BESE 8,871,166 8446159 7,657,367 6453200 5561082 4945942 4280035 3941869 3444962 3420308
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEAE 589,361 630554 463346 350558 396021 356934 768127 743120 604039 864,054
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS KR&S 8,281,805 7815605 7,194,021 6,093642 5165061 4589008 3511908 3198749 2840923 2,556,254
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO RRARAER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE N
COMPANY RAER 6,973,345 6,685,006 6,137,672 5258760 4704867 4232113 3210,764 2942064 2581892 2340227
SUBSCRIPTION RIGHT -BLTHE
RESERVE OF A LISTED NAZABRE
SUBSIDIARY e - - 4639 1,850 1,850 - - - - -
MINORITY INTERESTS DERRER 1,308,460 1130599 1051710 833032 458344 356895 301144 256685 250,031 216,027
8,281,805 7815605 7,194,021 6,093,642 5165061 4589008 3511908 3198749 2840923 2,556,254
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